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2016 11 2016 12 30
2022 12 30
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30
2022 12 30

30
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201609
201612

23 103

2022 10 31
95.08
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201612
2022 30
2022 2021
(2b),(4) 23,917,172 2,274,045 30,431,970 2,893,472
817 78
3)) 94,435 8,979
666,362 63,358 679,700 64,626
@i) 57,123 5,431 62,951 5,985
24,735,092 2,351,813 31,175,438 2,964,161
) 36,878 3,506 45,214 4,299
94,290 8,965
652,275 62,018 568,210 54,025
783,443 74,490 613,424 58,324
(8) 23,951,649 2,277,323 30,562,014 2,905,836

2022 12

J.P.
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7

201612
2022 30

2022 30 2021 30

(1,371,463) (130,399) 1,991,976 189,397

159,312 15,147 196,081 18,643

(1,212,151) (115,251) 2,188,057 208,040

101,661 9,666 126,254 12,004

80,795 7,682 100,063 9,514

26 2

62,452 5,938 77,071 7,328

244,908 23,286 303,414 28,849

(1,457,059) (138,537) 1,884,643 179,192

(1,457,059) (138,537) 1,884,643 179,192
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201612
2022 30
2022 30
2022
30,562,014 2,905,836
(1,457,059) (138,537)
(5,153,306) (489,976)
23,951,649 2,277,323
2021 30
2021
36,023,813 3,425,144
1,884,643 179,192
(7,346,442) (698,500)

30,562,014 2,905,836
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201612
2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
(1,457,059) (138,537) 1,884,643 179,192
(159,312) (15,147) (196,081) (18,643)
(1,616,371) (153,685) 1,688,562 160,548
6,514,798 619,427 5,320,216 505, 846
(94,435) (8,979)
13,054 1,241
(8,336) (793)
13,338 1,268 39,988 3,802
84,065 7,993 97,673 9,287
160,129 15,225 194,367 18,480
5,053,188 480,457 7,353,860 699,205
(5,059,016) (481,011) _ (7,346,442) (698,500)
(5,059,016) (481,011) _ (7,346,442) (698,500)
(5,828) (554) 7,418 705
62,951 5,985 55,533 5,280
57,123 5,431 62,951 5,985
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2007 11
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30

2018 S&P 500

105/304

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2014 12
14
201609
2016 225
J.P.
AIFMD
FCA J.P.
EEA AIFM



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

201609 2016 30 2016 12
201612 2016 12 30 2016 11
10
201609 201612
100
100 ETF
ETF
201609 201612
2022 30 2022 12 30
COVID-19

COVID-19
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NAV
IFRS
IFRS
201609 201612
2022 30 2022 12 30
201609
2021
1AS 28
2021
2021 30 COVID-19 IFRS 16

IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
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2021
IFRS 17
IFRS 17 IFRS 17 IFRS
IAS 16
IAS 37
2018 - 2020 IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS 16 IAS 41
2022
1AS
IFRS 15
FVTPL
FVOCI
FVOCI
FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL
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FVTPL

IFRS
ECL
FVTPL IFRS 15
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12

2022 30 2021 30

FVTPL

FVTPL
FVTPL

J.P. N.A.
FDI

FDI FDI
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98 100

J.P.

FDI
FDI

J.P.

FDI
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12

201609
201612

201609
201612

FVTPL
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IAS 32
I1AS

IAS 32 IAS

IAS 32 32
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EU

PAI

EU
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2022 30 2021 30
201609 2022 2021
82,243,273 102,880,371
82,243,273 102,880,371
201612 2022 2021
23,917,172 30,431,970
23,917,172 30,431,970
2022 30 2021 30
201609
2022 2021
82,243,273 99.92 102,880,371 99.60
201612
2022 2021

23,917,172 99.86 30,431,970 99.57
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J.P. N.A.
2021 30
2021 30
2022 2022 2021 2021
30 30 30 30
822,535 1,028,962
201609 (822,535) (1,028,962)
239,172 304,320
201612 (237,172) (304, 320)
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201609

2022 30
82,243,273 82,243,273
10,249 10,249
350,080 350,080
82,593,353 10,249 82,603,602
263,466 263,466
10,256 10,256
2,495,426 2,495,426
2,769,148 2,769,148

2021 30
102,880,371 102,880,371
184,845 184,845
191,583 191,583
93,865 93,865
278,710 102,880,371 191,583 103,350,664
202,214 202,214
191,216 191,216

2,182,537 2,182,537
2,575,967 2,575,967
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201612

2022 30
23,917,172 23,917,172
94,435 94,435
57,123 57,123
23,974,295 94,435 24,068,730
36,878 36,878
94,290 94,290
652,275 652,275
783,443 783,443

2021 30
30,431,970 30,431,970
817 817
62,951 62,951
63,768 30,431,970 30,495,738
45,214 45,214
568,210 568,210

613,424 613,424
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201609
201612
IFRS
IFRS
2022 30 2021 30
201609

201612
2022 30 2021 30 201609

201612
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201609
2022 30
S&P 99.92
2021 30
S&P 99.60
201612
2022 30
S&P 99.86
2021 30
S&P 99.57
2022 30 2021 30 J.P. N.A.
BNP
J.P. N.A. A2 2021 30 A2
BNP

Aa3 2021 30 Aa3
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2022 30 2021 30 J.P. N.A.
12
201609 2022 2021
263,466 202,214
10,256 191,216
2,495,426 2,182,537

2,769,148 2,575,967
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201612 2022 2021
36,878 45,214
94,290
652,275 568,210

783,443 613,424
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201609
2022 30
82,243,273 82,243,273
82,243,273 82,243,273
2021 30
102,880,371 102,880,371

102,880,371 102,880,371
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201612
2022 30
23,917,172 23,917,172
23,917,172 23,917,172
2021 30
30,431,970 30,431,970
30,431,970 30,431,970

2022 30 2021 30
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2022 30 2021 30
201609
2022 30
10,249 10,249
2,476,909 2,476,909
350,080 350,080
350,080 2,487,158 2,837,238
10,256 10,256
2,758,892 2,758,892
2,769,148 2,769,148
2021 30
184,845 184,845
191,583 191,583
2,517,043 2,517,043
93,865 93,865
93,865 2,893,471 2,987,336
191,216 191,216
2,384,751 2,384,751

2,575,967 2,575,967
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201612

2022 30
94,435 94,435
666,362 666,362
57,123 57,123
57,123 760,797 817,920
94,290 94,290
689,153 689,153
783,443 783,443

2021 30
817 817
679,700 679,700
62,951 62,951
62,951 680,517 743,468
613,424 613,424

613,424 613,424
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0TC
0TC

oTC
01C

2022 30 2021 30
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oTC
oTC
ISDA
2022 30 2021 30

201609 2022 30 2021 30
1,150,253 1,159,500
(3,510,729) 1,776,331
(2,360,476) 2,935,831

201612 2022 30 2021 30
757,834 1,053,913
(2,129,297) 938,063

(1,371,463) 1,991,976
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IAS 32
IAS 32

36
IFRS

2022 30 2021 30
201609 Aries Finance Ltd 0% due 26 September 2022 10,000 15,000
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2022

201612

30

2021
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30
201609

201609 2022 2021
977,300 1,158,400
(174,770) (181,100)
802,530 977,300
82,311,363 103,291,740
102.56 105.69

201612 2022 2021
260,570 324,430
(44,750) (63,860)
215,820 260,570
23,951,649 30,562,014
110.98 117.29
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0.51 201609 0.43
201612
201609 201612
2022 30 2021 30
201609 2022 30 2021 30
444,965 541,630
263,466 202,214
201612 2022 30 2021 30
101,661 126,254

36,878 45,214
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10
2,500
201609
201612
2022 30 2021 30
11
BNP
BNP
201609
201612
2022 30 2021 30
12
BNP
201609

201612
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2022 30 2021 30

13

BNP

14

50
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15

IAS 24 J.P.

JP

J.P.
JP
16
201609 201612
2022 30 2022 12 30

17

2022 12
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2022
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Motes 2022 2021 2022 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000 SJPY 000 JPY000
Assets
Financial asseats
Francial assels af fair vakds through profit or loss {2b).[4) 217,168 231,145 47042 8,021
Interest recenable T3 T3 T 18
Armount dise from brokers {20 - - 10 1
D from unithedldars 1.065 a5 58 294
Management fee rebate recevable [ay G413 3183 T 265 3147
OAimer recaivables and prepayment 158 B24 1as 1,454
Cash and cash équivalents {21} 155 296 0. FGE 2401 34853
Total assets 353213 264 918 S8 281 a7 793
Liabilities
Fimnancial labllities
Fmancial labilies ol fair value through profit or loss [ 20).04) ERES 5463 1507 57
Adminisiration fee payable {11} 1226 1,255 1227 1,255
Audit Tea payable 175 112 23 42
Due bo undholders 1465 a7 - -
AT panvables 2. 206 318 2100 581
Total labilites 8215 5 345 4 357 2135
Equity (&) AT4 008 250 673 3424 &5 655

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
15
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Az at 30 June 2022
Gald 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Motas 022 2021 2022 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY 000
Assets
Financial assets
Financeal assels &t falr value through profit or loss (0] (4 560,793 807 a2} f aa 1ATT
Interast recanable 181 247 3 3
Armount dis thom Drokers {21) - - 3 -
Due from unitholders 1.010 4493 - -
Management fee rebabe recenable {9) 4581 2,17 6299 2,236
Oimer recaivables and prepayment 198 1,113 195 1,307
Cash and cash e quivalents 2i) 41 163 320 457 1.038 2 358
Total assets £50.042 1141510 16577 17,331
Liabilities
Firameial llabllitie s
Fmnanceal liabdities at fair value thraugh profit or loss ()04 27 322 159,703 - -
Administration fee payable {11} 1247 1,255 1228 1,255
Audit fee payvable 366 S50 1 15
Armount duss bo brokers 21 - - - 1449
D to unihodders - - 82 -
OHher payables 1924 6532 1631 505
Total liabilities 20,339 162 150 2962 1,924
Equity ] 628 103 79,360 13615 15457

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
16
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Az at 30 June 2022
India 2% Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Wotes 2022 2021 2022 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY D00 JPY 000
Assets
Financial assets
Financeal assels 8t falr value through profit or loss (0] (4 123,112 198,236 EETS 1014
Interast recanable 45 63 1 1
Amount due from brokers {21) - - 13 1,001
Due from unitholdars N . - 3
Management fee rebabe recenable {9) 5103 3,257 3256 1,383
Oimer recaivables and prepayment 198 387 195 1,290
Cash and cash e quivalents {2i) B35 3491 #5531 10,301 g7
Total assets 185,070 28T 488 40444 7527
Liabilities
Fimancial labilities
Financea| labdliss at fair value throwgh profit or loss (2b)(4) 13512 2,519 - -
Adrainistration fee payable {11} 1228 1,255 1228 1,255
Audit fes payable 1oy 150 ] 3
D bo untholders 148 170 346 1,242
OHher payables 2734 73 1718 506
Total liabilities 19,729 4 535 3316 3 006
Equity =] 175 341 8261 A6 128 4,521

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
17
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2022
AUD Target Maturity Bond AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201609 Fund 201612
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
ALD AUD AUD AUD
Assets
Financial agsets
Fnancsal assels & Tair vako through profl ar loss [ECOREY] B2,243273 102 880,371 2BeTAT2 30,431,970
Interest recenable - 184 545 - 8T
Armount dus fiom Drokers {21) 10249 191,583 84435 .
Oiher recaivables and prepayment 2,476 909 2517043 666362 679,700
Cash and cash équivalents (24} 350,080 93 885 57123 52951
Total assets 85 080 511 105867 707 24 T35 082 31,175 438
Liakllites
Fimnancial labilitles
Management fee peayabls (9} HEIABE 202,214 36 8T8 45,214
D b0 undhadders 10,256 191,216 4200 -
Other payables 2 AS5 436 2 182 537 B52.375 588 10
Total liabilities 2 78D 148 3 575 87 TEL 443 G13434
Equity (&) B2.311.363 103,791,740 23,851 543 30562014

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
18

140/304



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2022

US Technology 2x Bull Fund US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Holes 2022 2021 2022 2001
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY'o00
Ansats
Financial assots
Financial assels at fair valug Inrough profil or lcss (2b}44) 1,831,575 1,514,172 §11.692 22319
Interasl recavanie 452 288 BES 53
Amount due from brokers (i) 3,836 - 1313
Dua from unitholders - 163,048 42 815 k1]
Managamant fee rabate recevable 18 683 1.323 1.831 234
Citar recarbiables and pregayment 257 541 257 535
Gash and cash equivalenis {20 561823 115,884 59.036 220,316
Total assets Z.394 B30 1795104 815758 545 955
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilitas at fair vahes through profil or less (2b).14) ar.arz . - 71,454
Admiristration fes payable (11} 1.366 611 1.368 611
Audit fee payable 3.085 3187 ae2 891
Amgunt due 1o brokers e 11.964 17.897 3638 -
Due bo unilholders 21,588 33,B58 = 452
Ciher payables _lsE2T 17,448 3411 4,524
Total labilithes 426 316 73,049 8,809 7B, 002
Equity 8 1.968.514 1,726,055 06, BET 4EE 953

The financial statements were approved and aulhonsed for sgue by Trustee and the

= Z}O

Inlerrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited as Trustes
Hape Mok [ Francsss Jessmngs, Aubanzed Sgamones

of ine Manager on 09 December 2022

J.P. Mosgan Mansar Management Limited s Mansagers

J 'b::r.hc:mm-e_
CC.Miu.. hwa D'n::njfcy

The accompanying nates form an integral par of these financial stataments
19

141/304



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

China 2% Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Naotes June 2022 Jume 2021 June 2022 June 221
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY00

Income
HNat (lossgain on finandal assats and kabilibes at fair valus

through profit or less T {246 .650) 24815 90,298 {25,960)
Interast income induding amodrsation (11653} (255] [48.026) {25]
Total net (loss)income {258.303) 24 560 42271 {25 G&5)
Expenses
Adminisiration fee 1 2350 2124 2349 2129
ALt Tea 352 247 59 Lt
Custody tee 12 288 248 244 222
Management fee rebate g {3.645) {3,380} {3.955) {3.522)
Tnsstes foe n 369 305 369 3
Legal and professional fee S92 528 542 523
Oiner axpansas 1068 arg 490 560
Total sperating expenses 1374 ara 248 B
(Lossiprofit before tax (259677} 23 585 42034 {28.270)
‘Withbolding tax (22 (1] [3) 4]
Net (loss)profit attributable to participating wnits (250 GO0 21578 4201 [26 274)

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements

20
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold Zx Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Noftes June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY 00D JPY 000 JPYO00

Income
et gainfloss ) on financial asssets and babilibes at fair valus

through profit or kes T 1|22 {143,733) =1 10,866
Intergst income incuding amoisation (74860} 21 [1.265) {38)
Toatal net incomel/floss) 108412 {143 712} {G77] 10527
Expenses
Adrninisiration fe 1 2348 2130 2,250 2,120
Audit fea 8918 1010 (5 28
Custody foa 12 373 363 238 217
banagement fee rebate 4 (2.751) {2,218) [3.877) (3.448)
T nustan Mo 10 369 305 269 305
Legal and professional fee 542 537 542 520
Oflher expenses 1 840 2076 74 XS]
Total operating expenses 3740 4 303 [ 130
Profitless) before tax 104 522 {147 915} {T46) 10,647
Withaoldng Lae {63) {62) {13 1
Net profitfloss) attibutable to participating units 104 558 1147977} {747} 10 5586

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

India 2x Bull Fumd India Zx Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Hotes June 2022 Jume 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPYR00

Income
Het {loss)gain on financial asssets and babilibes at fair valus

thraugh profit or les T (48,0897 164,742 8E0G (25.962)
Intergst Incomae induding amotisation {251) (386) [2.930) 145]
Taotal net (loss Vincome (48 3480 164 376 SETS (26.027]
Expenses
Adrninistration foe (8] 2350 2128 2350 2,128
Audit fea 251 310 3 i7
Custody fes 12 273 255 236 216
banagement fee rebate 4 {3.808) 13,334) (3564 (3.524)
T nshond Mo 10 363 303 3639 i
Legal and professional fee 592 533 542 521
Oflher expenses 410 Ga3 439 436
Total operating expenses 937 1,201 31 100
(Lossyprefit before tax (49,265 183,175 5844 {26,12T)
Withldng Lae {21) {18) . -
Het (lossyprofit attributable to participating units (49 306} 183 157 5 544 {26.127]

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of thege financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

AUD Target Maturity Bond AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201 608 Fund 201612
YWear ended 30 Year ended 30 YWear ended 30 Year ended 30
Nates June 2022 Jume 2021 June 2022 June 2021
ALID AUD ALID AUD
Inceme
el (losspgain on hnancal a5sets &nd kabilibes at fair valus
thrgugh profit or loss T [22A604T6) 283583 (1.371.463) 1.8891.976
Interest income induding amorrsation G52 G44 744 775 150 312 196 (81
Total net (lossincoeme (1,707 532} 3,720 606 11242151} 2 188 057
Expenses
Management fee E 444 965 541630 101 B61 126,254
Pradirnirany axpanGes 208772 ERAM B0, T35 100,063
Transachon cosis - - - 26
O r axpanses L2896 T4 458 B2 452 17071
Toatal operating expenses BT 733 11754589 244 Qi A3.414
(Lozeyprafit before tax [2 680, 265) 25551017 [1A457.053) 1,664 643
Witk ding b = - - =
Met (loss)profit attributable to participating wnits [2 680 265) 2 EES 117 {1 457 059) 1 654 643

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

US Technology 2x Bull Fund S Technelogy 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Hotes June 2022 Jume 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000

Income
Het {loss)gain on financial asssets and babilibes at fair valus

thraugh profit or Kes T (309.5339) 1,536 561 [g9.810) [480,773)
Inb@rast Income induding amosation 1737 1188 am 453
Taotal net (loss Vincome (207 EB02) 1,537 849 [39.438) [450.320]
Expenses
Adrninisiration fae (8] 259 2488 2531 2488
Audit fea - 3122 - b
Custody fes 553 1525 299 1,798
banagement fee rebate (G18) {2,483) [3.056) (4, 734)
T rangachon costs 12838 3865
Trestes fee 454 334 454 834
Legal and professional fee 14 12 14 12
Ol axpinsas 280 28¥ 1273 1,004
Tatal sperating expenses 6598 21176 1675 B.138
[Lossiprofit before tax {314, 7003 1.516 873 [91.114) [496,478)
Withboldng bax {160] {138} {36} {63)
Met (lozs)profit attributable to particlpating wnits [214 BEO) 1516 537 (91,1503 (496, 541)

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of thesge financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossyprofit before ta
Adjustments for;

= Intenest income including amarhisation

Operating cash Now before working capital changes

- Decreasel{mcraase | in financial assets at fair value through profié or

loss

- {DecreaseYincrease in financial liabilities at fair vaiue frough profit or

loss
= {Increase detreasa in due from brokers
- | Decreasejincrease inadminstration fee payabds
= Incraasad|dacredsa) in audl fes payabla
- Increase in management fea rebate receivables
= Decragte/moraasa ) in other recenvablas
= Incraasaddacredsa) in olher pavablas
- Income received mndudng amaortisation
= Withinolding Lax paid
Net cash (used in)from aperating activities

Cash flows from financing actlvities
Frocesds Fom subscnplions of unis, met of due Trom wni holdars
Fayments of redemplion of units, net of due from wnit holders

Met cash fromfused in) financing activities

Met Increasefdecrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents al beginnrng of the wear
Cagh and cash equivalents at end of the year

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
SPY D00 SPY 000 JP D00 SPYO00

(259,677} 23,585 42,024 (26,270}
11,653 255 43 026 25
[248.024) 23 840 G050 (26 245}
13.877 [34.002) 10,878 47,215
(322) (7548 1,250 257

- = 1] 282

{27) 172 (28} 172
61 [1,173) (19 {682}
(6,230} {2,550} (4,118} (2 780}
626 | 106) 1.256 {111}
1,890 {265) 1.519 {395}
(11,653} {206) {4£,015) (26}
{22} {10} 13} {4}
(249,724) (42,038} 5162 17 683
1,009 363 586085 531,848 124 202
533 6841 E55 G5 E16 162 174 487
375,122 40 280 (B4, 314) (= 285}
125,998 [1.6848) [51.452) (32 B02)
29298 30847 34 853 67 455

155 206 70 743 3401 T

The accompanying notes form an infegral part of thege financial statements
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

Gold 2x Bull Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Gold Z2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Jurme 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
SPY D0 SPY 000 JPY 00D SJPY Q0D
Cash flows from operating activities
Proftloss) before ax 104,622 [147.815) [T48) 10,687
Adjustments for;
= Intenest income incduding amaisation 74 860 121] 1,265 ]
Operating cash Now before working capital changes 170482 (147 936) 519 10736
- Decreasel{mcraase | in financial assets at fair value through profié or
loss 245,629 [515.564) 2433 19,849
- {Decrease yincrease in financial fiabilities at fair value firough profit or
loss [132,381) 150,703 - (4 345}
- Decreasefmcraase ) indue from brokers - 1435 (3) 408
- {Decreaseincrease inadminstration fee payatls {28) 173 (27} 173
- | Dacreaga incseasd i audi e pavable (194} 43 ) {25}
- Decrease in management fee payable - {774) - -
= Incriase in managanmant e rebate racanvable (1,803} [2.778) [4,095) [1.752)
= {Dedraas o incredsd in dus 1o badkers = {755) (1490 1449
- Decreasef{merease | in other recervables 915 {95) 11045 {113}
= Incriasafdecraasa) in olbwe payables 1.282 {215) 1,126 &1}
- Income received ncuding amaortisation [T, 804 ) {178 {1,265} {37}
= Withinalding Lax paid G35} [62) {1} {1}
Net cash fromf{used in) operating activities o045 (507 .009) [317) 24 961
Cash flews from financing activities
Frocesds from subscriptions of units, met of due from un holders 1.028.682 2004 279 B 092 165415
Fayments of redemplion of unds, net of due Fom unil Rolders 1484 215 1AG61.753 55,095 200 238
Met cash (used in}from financing activities [455,333) B32.526 [1,003) [32.221)
Net (decrease}increase in cash and cash equivalents [236,258) 125 517 {1.320) {10 560)
Cash and cash e quivalents al beginning of the year 329457 203 940 2,358 12818
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 93 169 320 45T 1038 2 358

The accampanying notes form an irfegral part of these financial statements
29
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022

EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossyprofit betore tax
Adjustments for;
= Intenesd income incuding amarhsation
Operating cash Now before working capital changes

- Decreasel{mcraase | in financial assets at fair value through profié or

loss

= Imraaseydecreasa) in financial liabilities at fair value trcgh prod or

loss
- Decragsefmoraasa ) in due from brokers
- {Decreaseincrease inadminstration fee payatls
= | Decraasaincredsd inaudil hee payvable
- Increase in management fea rebate recaivable
= Decragte in dus 1o brokers
= Decraatef|mcradsa | in other recenvables
- Increaseddscrease) in other payables
= Incorme recaniad noudmng amorisation
- Withholding tex paid
Net cash fromfAusedin) operating activities

Casgh Mlews from financing activities

Procesds from subscriptions of units, met of due from unit holders
Fayments of redemplion of uris, net of dus from wnit holders
Net cash (used in}¥frem financing activities

Net (decrease fincrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Imdia Zx Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
SPY D00 SPY 000 JP D00 SPY 000
[49,285) 183,175 5044 [26.127)
251 265 2030 45
(49034} 183 541 3.774 [26.082)
73,116 82 899 (52 6GT) 23,808
12,893 2518 - {1.356)
- T3 aEg {882}
{27} 172 (27} 172
{43} {2.348) 3 {235}
[2,845) [3.026) (1,873) (465)
- {676) - .
183 2748 oaz {113}
2003 (448) 1,230 {195}
(233} 1358) {2.930) 41}
{21} (18] - :
Ia.087 262607 (25404 ) [2.289)
550 5432 TOE 551 150,253 73557
(617 779} (G55 5204 {115 355} (77 448}
(58,237} [289.078) 34 308 2891}
(23,140) [27.371) 9,494 (8,180}
B85 531 112 402 B07 9037
65 381 85 531 0301 BT

The accampanying notes form an irfegral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022
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Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossyproft bedone fax
Adjustments for:
= Intemest ncome induding amorbsation
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

- Decragse in tnancal assels ab fir value throwgh profit or loss
- Decreasefmereasa | in due from brokers
- Increase in management fes payvable
= Incraase in management feo rebate recanable
- Diecrease in other recen ables
- Increase n olfwr payables
- Income received ncuding amaortisation
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flews from financing activities
Fayments of nedemplion of unis, net of dus fFrom unil kodders
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increasefdecrease) in cazh and cash equivalents
Cash and cash e quivalents al baginnmg of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

AUD Target Maturity Bond ALD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201603 Fund 201612
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
SJune 2023 June 2021 June 20232 June 2021

ALD AUD AlD AUD

{2.680,265) 2555 117 {1.457,058) 1684 643

(5.2 944 ) [T 7750 (159,312} {196 081}

(3,333, 209) 1,760,242 {1.618.371) 1,688,562

20,637 093 13,971 469 5,514,798 5220216

181,334 [172.08%) (04 435) -

51,252 55435 - 13,054

= - (&,336) )

40,134 101 B&T 13.338 39 988

312,889 357485 24,065 97,673

837 TES B9 264 160,129 194 367

18,737 267 18,683 650 5,053,188 T.353. 860

(18481072} (18 EB18483) {5.059. 016} (7. 346 442}

(18,481,072}  (18.813.483) 15,059,018} [7.346 442)

256 215 [135.833) [5.5823) TA18

93 865 220693 32 951 55.533

350 060 a3 BG5S 57,123 EEE

The accampanying notes form an irfegral part of these financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 30 June 2022
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Cash flows from operating activities
{Lossyprofit betore b
Adjustments for;

= Intenes income incuding amarhsation

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

- Increase in financial assels &t fair value through profit or loss

= Incraasafdecreasa) in inancal habilties at far value through profd or

loss
- Deacrease in dus from brokers.
= Increase n adminisiration ke pawvakile
- {Decreaselincrease inaudit fee payable
- Decraatelncradss ) inmanagimant fed rebate recevable
- {Decrease fincrease indus bo brokers
= D radta in rustes fes payablea
= Decraatafmcradsa) in other récevables
- ({Decrease fincrease inother payables
= [ncah e racaniid Inclisdimg amorhizalion
- Withholding tax paid
Net cash (used injfrom operating activities

Casgh Mlows from financing activities

Procesds from subscriptions of units, met of due from unit holders
Fayments of redemplion of uris, net of dus from wnit holders
Net cash fromf{used in) financing activities

Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginnng of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

S Technology 2x Bull Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

US Technolegy 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
SPY D00 SPY 000 JP 00D SPY D00
(314,700} 1L.516 673 (81,114} (486 ATE)
(1757} [1. 188} [371) {453)
[316.437) 1.515 485 (91.485) (496 931)
[317.40%) [a57.531) (189,373) (181 599}
371,372 - (T1.484) 63,125
3836 2741 1.313 30,714
=7 141 757 141
(108} 3008 (495} G
40 {B638] igg [1.530})
(5,933} [152.474) 3638 (1518}
- {127) - (127}
284 {541) 278 {335}
{521} 12,774 {1,113) 3506
1.534 1004 59 418
{160} {136] [36}) {63}
(262,133} 425 406 (347,296) {583,764)
5,475,712 7,781,952 2,235 142 1 857 517
(6 265 B ) (8,314 085) {2052 166) (1 246 612}
708,063 [532.133) 185,978 710805
445929 [108,727) (161,280} 117,141
115 804 224 BN prli R 103 178
561823 115 584 39056 220316

The accompanying notes form an irfegral part of these financial statements
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information

PassiM Trust ("the Trust™) is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of the Cayman lslands pursuant
tothe Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended by Supplemental Deeds (collectively referred to as the "Deeds™).

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust will be separated into
different sub-funds, As at 30 June 2022, the Trust has 14 sub-funds under its umbrella, out of which 10 sub-funds, China
2% Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2« Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, ALD
Target Maturity Bond Fund 201808, ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2« Bull Fund and LS
Technology 2¢ Bear Fund are presented in this report, Currently each of those sub-fund issues only cne class of share.

For Sedes 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and Series 2016 JPX = Nikkei
400 Fund the fund administrator is State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited and fund custodian is State Street
Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited. For Series 201 B S&P 500 Fund the fund administrator is State Street Cayman Trust
Cempany, Ltd and fund custodian is State Street Bank and Trust Company. A separate Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements have been prepared for these 4 sub-funds.

The Manager is J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the "Manager”}, a member of the J.P Morgan Group. The
Manager was incorporated as a limited liabiltty company under the laws of England and Wales on 7 November 2007
The Manager is authonised by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCAT) in the UK pursuant to the AIFMD Regulations.
The principal activity of the Manager is to manage collactive investment schemes and special purpase vehicles, The
Manager is an asset management company regulated by the FCA and based within the Investment Bank of J.P, Morgan
Chase, The Manager's focus is to deliver, amongst other initiatives, inncvative Asset Managerment products to
institutional clients and intermedares globally (excluding the LSA) on a customised bass,

The Trustee of the Trust is Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the "Trustee™),

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a Non- European Economic Area (TON-EEA”) AIF with a Eurcpean
Economic Area ("EEA") AIFM. The distribution ofthis Trust is restricted to Japanese investors only.

Mora than one class of units may be issued in respect of each sub-fund and the Manager may, in its absolute discretion,
differentiate between the rights attaching to the different classes within a particular sub-fund including, with out limitation,
the dividend policy, the currency in which the class is denominated, the level of management fees, the subscription
charge andfor the redemption charge payable in respect of each class. In addition, a sub-fund may use Financial
Derpvative Instruments on behalf of specific classes in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed. Subject to the
foregoing, a separate pool of assets will not be maintained for each class.

The Manager may also classify units in senes within each class for the purposes of calculating fees. Any cutstanding
series of units may, in the discretion of the Manager be redesignated and converted (after the payment or accrual of all
applicable fees and expenses) into units of ancther series at the prevailing net asset value per unit of such other series.

The assets of each sub-fund will be invested in accordance with the investment cbjectives and policies of that sub-fund
as set out in this Prospectus or, as the case may be, the relevant Supplement Deed.

Date of launch Date of constitution

China 2« Bull Fund 11 December 2014 08 December 2014
China 2« Bear Fund 11 December 2014 08 Dacember 2014
Gold 2x Bull Fund 11 December 2014 08 December 2014
Gold 2x Bear Fund 11 December 2014 08 December 2014
India 2% Bull Fund 11 Decamber 2014 08 Dacember 2014
India 2x Bear Fund 11 December 2014 08 December 2014
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201608 30 Septernber 2016 12 August 2016
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 30 December 2016 04 Novernber 2016
LIS Technology 2x Bull Fund 10 March 2020 20 February 2020
US Technology 2x Bear Fund 10 March 2020 20 February 2020
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ({continued)
1. General Information {continued)

The investment objectives for each of the 10 sub-funds are listed below:

The China 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times {2x) leveraged exposure to the
performance, whether positive or negative, of the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (the “HSCEIT), hedged in
Japanesa Yen, in the medium-tarm.

The China 2« Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-imes (2x) leveraged exposure to the
inverse (or cpposite] performance, whether positive or negative, of the Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (the
“HSCEN), hedged in Japanese Yen, in the medum-term.

The Gold 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposure to the
performance, whether positive or negative, of the SPDR Gold Trust exchange traded fund (the "ETF7), hedged in
Japanese Yen, in the medum-term.

The Gold 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a twotimes (2¢) leveraged exposure to the
inverse (or opposite) performance, whether positive of negative, of the SPDR Geld Trust exchange traded fund (the
“ETF?), hedged in Japanese Yen, in the medium-term.

The India 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposure to the
perfarmancs, whother positive or negative, of the CHX Nifty Index (the “SCHX Nifty"), hedged in Japanese Yen, in the
medium-term.

The India 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposure to the
inverse (or opposite) performance, whether positive or negative, of the CHX Mifty Index (the “CMNX Mifty"), hedged in
Japanese Yen, in the medum-term.

The AIVD Target Maturity Bond Fund 20160% and the AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 both seek to achieve
medium to long term capital appreciation while aiming to protect 100% of the initial issue price per unit at the maturity
date. Both the sub-funds invest in AUD denominated linked notes issued by a special purpose company and through
exposure to the performance of the ETF Efficiente Index hedged in AUD consisting of several exchange traded fund
("ETF"s), while aiming to protect 100% of the issue price per unitin AUD at the maturity,

The AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and the ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 will both mature on 30
September 2022 and 30 December 2022 respectively,

The US Technology 2x Bull Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times (2x) leveraged exposura
to the performance, whether positive or negative, of the NASDAD 100 Stock Index (the "NASDAGCT), in the medum term.

The US Technology 2x Bear Fund seeks to provide, before any fees and expenses, a two-times {2x) leveraged exposure
to the performance, whether positive or negative, of the MASDAC 100 Stock Index (the "NAS DA, in the medum term,

The effects of the infectious respiratory iliness caused by coronavirus known as COWID-19 which gave way to an
entended global pandemic, and noted in the previous Annual Report, have been mitigated; the various restricions and
disruptions to daily life have eased and notwithstanding other global issues, uncertainty and global concems brought
about by COVID-18 are no longer widespread.

Mewe in the aftermath of the pandemic, the cperations of the Trust continue as normal. Alengside the wider industry, the
Manager's working practices have evolved to incorporate a degree of flexible working, with no impact to the Trust.

z. summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial staterments are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the pericd presented, unless otherwise stated.

All references to net asset value (NAVT) throughout these fnancial statements refer to net assets attributable to
unitholders (after amortisation of preliminary expenses adustment) unless ctherwise stated.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(a) Basls of preparation

The knancial statements of the sub-funds have been prepared in accordance with Intematicnal Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"). The financal statements are prepared using the fair valuation of Bnancial assets and financial
liabilities {including dervative instrurments) held at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFR.S requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the sub-fund's accounting policies. The
principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below,

The sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, basis of
accounting had been changed from the going concem basis to the liguidation basis as the sub-funds will mature on 30
September 2022 and 31 December 2022 respectively. The assets and liabilites of the Sub-Fund ALUD Target Maturity
Bond Fund 201609, were derecognized. Investments were derecognized on the trade date of dispesal. The resultant
realized gains and losses on the sales ofinvestments were computed on the basis ofthe difference between the weighted
average cost and seling price gross of transaction costs, and were taken up in the statement of comprehensive income.

MNew Standards adopted as at 1 July 2021

&5 8.28 requires the sub-funds to disclose detailed information on certain Standards that have been applied for the
first time in the current peried, Cther Standards and amendments that are effective for the first time in July 2021 and
could be applicable to the the sub-funds are:

= COVID-1S-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16)

« Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2 {Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 38 IFRE 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

The Manager has assessed the impact of this standard and it is not expected to have a significant impact on the
sub-funds’ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial statements.

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 July 2021, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Mone of these are expected to
have a significant effect on the financial statements of the sub-funds.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (Amendments to IFRS 17 and IFRS 4)

References to the Conceptual Framework

Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to LAS 16)

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Confract (Amendments to 1AS 37)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cyele (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 8, IFRS 16, 1AS 41)
effective 1 January 2022

Classification of Liabllities as Current or Mon-current (A&mendments to LAS 1)

+ Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities from a Single Transaction
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
(b) Financlal assets and liabilities at falr value through profit or loss
(i) Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
Except for those rade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15, all inancial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for

transaction costs.

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments. are classified into the following

categonies:

. armortised cost;

. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

. fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOCH)

In the periods presented, the sub-funds do not have any financial assets categorised as FVOCI.
The classification is determined by both:

. the business model for managing the financial asset
. the contractual cash fiow characteristics ofthe financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets at PYTPL are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as net gainfloss) on financial assets and financial liabilities at FYTPL, except for impairment of trade
receivables which is presented within other expenses.

(i) Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are not designated
as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give nse to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

After iniial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Discounting is
ormitted where the effect of dscounting is immaternal.

The sub-funds’ cash and cash equivalents, interest receivable, amount due from brokers, due from unitholders,
management fee rebate and cther receivables fall into this category.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
(b} Financlal assets and liabilities at falr value through profit or loss (continued)

{iiiy Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets that are held within a different business model other than ‘hold to collect’ or “hald to collect and
sell' are categorised at fair value through fair value through proft or loss. The contractual cash flows of the
sub-funds’ debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose
of collecting contractual cash fiows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection
of contractual cash Rows is only incidental to achieving the sub-funds’ business model’s objective. Consequenthy,
all investrents are measured at fair value through profit or loss.  All derivative financial instruments fall into this

category.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quated market prices at
the close of trading on the reperting date. The quoted market prices used for fnancial assats held by the sub-funds
are the market closing price at reporting date,

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the statement of comprehensive income within “net gains of financial assets at fair value
through profit ar loss”™ in the period in which they arise,

(iv) Impaimment of financial assets
IFRE 9's impairment requirements use more forward looking information to recognize expected credit losses — the
‘expected credt losses (ECL) model'. Instruments within the scope of the new requirements included loans and
other debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL trade receivables, contract assets

recognised and measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for the
issuer) that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Manager considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit

losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-locking approach, a distinction is made betwean:

= financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or that have
lenee credit risk {'Stage 1'); and

- financal instruments that have detericrated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit
risk is not low [ Stage 2).

‘Stage 3 would cover financial assets that have objective evidence ofimpairment at the reporting date.

‘“12-month expected credit losses’ are recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit losses” are
recognised for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit loszes is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument,

There are no expected credit losses for the sub-funds as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021,
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(b} Financlal assets and liabilities at falr value through profit or loss (continued)
(v} Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The sub-funds’ financial liabilities include financial liabilities at FYTPL, trade, expenses and other payables and
derivative financial instruments,

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the sub-funds’ designated a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss,

Subsequently, financial liabilties are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for
derivatives and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or
losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of net gainfloss) on financial assets and
financial liabilties at PVTPL".

{vi) Valuation of investments

The sub-funds have entered into Financial Derivative Instruments ("FDI™) and in particular Swap contracts with J.P,
Morgan Chase Bank M.A. under a Master Agreement. On any valuation date, swaps are valued using the
counterparty’s tradable market price, and the counterparty is engaged in providing a daily liquidity in such derivative
with limited bid-offer spreads,

The Manager has set up a counter valuation process that is performed by the portfolio managers. The portfalio
managers subject each FOI in each sub-fund to a daily valuation and have processes and controls in place to
challenge the counterparty's FDI valuation. The sub-funds also invest in US Treasury Bills and Japanese
Government Bonds which are valued on the valuation day at the last raded price quoted on a recognised market.

The ALD denominated performance linked notes will be isswed at a discount (38%) to their principal amount (the
“Mote Principal Amount” and have been designed to redeem at a value at least to 100% of the Mote Principal
Amount on maturity date.

The following reference assets of the notes include:

(i) Japanese Govemnment Bonds ("JGBs™);
{ii} an AUDVUPY curmrency swap with J.P. Morgan Securities PLC (the "Swap Counterparty™); and
(i} & notional leveraged exposure to the ETF Efficiente Index hedged in ALID.

On any valuation date, the ALUD denominated performance link notes are valued using the counterparty’s tradable
market price, and the counterparty is engaged in providing a daily liquidity in such performance link notas with
limited bid-offer spreads.

Tolerance gaps are defined for each FDI prior to the launch of any sub-fund. These gaps take into account the
characteristics of the FDI baeing employed by the sub-funds in mesting its investrent objectives and define the
valuation variance above which valuations may be recalculated or disputed and escalated further should the dispute
remain unresolved.

Any valuation differences that exceed that predefined maximum tolerance gap are escalated to the Internal Risk
Management and Controd Function of the Manager, which reviews causes for the discrepancy.

in the event that the internal Risk Management and Control function of the Manager are unable to rescive the
difference, they will escalate that differance to the Manager's Valuation Committes logether with detail of the
investigations performed. The Valuation Committee comprises the CED of the Manager, the Head of Risk
Management and Cenirol and a representative from J.P. Mergan's Corporate Valuation Contrad Group to provide
expert valuation advice,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(b} Financlal assets and liabilities at falr value through profit or loss (continued)
(vi) Valuation of investments (continued)
Where disputes are not resolved, they are escalated to the Trustea.

During the life of the FDI, its notional value will increase or decrease (as adusted for subscriptions and redemptions)
as the reference asset increases or decreasas in value.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through proft or loss represent the difference between
disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and take into account all brokers' charges and commissions.
Realized and change in unrealized gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recorded
in the statement of comprehen sive income.

{vil) Recognition/derecognition

Regular-way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which the sub-funds
commit to purchase or sell the investments, Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or the sub-funds have transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

{c) Derlvative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value, All derivatives are carmed as assets when their fair value is positive
and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of derivalives are included in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of net gainkloss) on financial assets and financial akslities at PVTPL". The price is based
on the counterparty tradable market price.

(d) Fair value estimation

The fair value of inancial assets and liabiliies traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivaltives and trading
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the date of the statement of Bnancial position.

When the sub-funds hold derivatives with offsetting market risks. it uses mid-market prices as a basis for establishing
fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies this bid or asking price to the net open position, as appropriate.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilites that are not raded in an active market is determined using the bid price
ofbroker quotes_ In particular, the fair value of debt securities is determined by reference to the broker quotes as obtained
from independent pricing sources including Financial Times Evaluated and Bloombeng for Japan Government Bonds.
For U5, Treasury Bills, the pricing scurces include Financial Times Interactive Data and Financial Times Evaluated. The
AUD denominated performance linked notes aims to deliver a retum linked to the performance of the ETF Efficients
Index hedged in ALD until 15 September 2022, while protecting 100% of the Mote Principal Amount on the Mote Maturity.
This level of protection is achieved through the combination of the JGBs and the AUDMPY curency swap. J.P. Morgan
E?ﬁcuriﬁﬁ plc shall assume the responsibility for making certain calculations and determinations, in respect of the ETF
ciente Index.

() Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there

is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, of realise
the assel and settle the lability simultanecusly.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

in Amounts due fromito brokers

Amounts due fromto brokers represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities purchased that have
bean contractad for but not yet sattled or delivered on the vear end date respectively.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. At each reporting
date, the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit sk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the sub-funds shall measure the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. Significant financial dificulties of the counterparties, probability that
the counterparties will enter bankruptcy or financial recrganisation, and default in payments are all considered indicators
that a loss allowance may be required. Ifthe credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to be credt impaired,
interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance.

{a) Income and expenses

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. it includes interest
income from cash and cash equivalents and on debt securities at fair value through profit or loss,

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.
{h) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation cumency

ftems included in each of the sub-fund's financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency”). This is the Japanese Yen (the "JPY") for China
2 Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold Zx Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2« Bear Fund,
US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund and the Australian Dollar (the "ALD") for ALD Target
Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, which reflects the primary capital raising
market.

The financial statements are presented in the Japanese Yen (the “JPY") for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund,
Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US
Technology 2x Bear Fund and the Australian Deollar (the "AUD") for ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612,

{ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign cufrency assets and liabiliies are translated into the functional cumrency, using the
exchange rate prevailing at the financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seffernent of such fransactions and from the translation at year-endperiod-end exchange rates of all assets and
liakilities dencminated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as par of “net
gainfless) on Brnancial assets and financial Rabiliies st PVTPL".

The sub-funds do not isolate that portion of gains or losses on trading securities and derivative financial instruments
which is due ta changes in foreign exchange rates from that which is due to changes in the market price of securities,
Such fluctuations are included in the net gains or losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income,

{1} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with criginal

maturities of three months or less. and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown as liabilities in the statement
of financial position,
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

i Redeemalde participating units

Units are classified as financial liabilities when there are more than one series of class of units outstanding for a sub-fund
as at the statement of financial position date as these units are subjact to differant rates for management fee caleulation
and therefore do not meet all the conditions under 1AS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and 1AS 1
{Amendment) “Presentation of Financial Statements — Puttable Financial nstruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation” for classification as equity. Units are classified as equity when there is only one series of class of units
outstanding for a sub-fund as at the statement of financial position date and these units meet all the other condtions of
equity classification under A5 32 {(Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and 1AS 1 {Amendment)
“Presantation of Financial Statements — Pultable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation”, including
the condition that these units were the most subordnated units in issue in that sub-fund,

The sub-funds” one class of units in issue meet the conditions of |AS 32 and are classified as equity.
] Taxation

The sub-funds currently incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and capital gains.
Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the statement of comprehensive income,

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate item in the staterment of comprehensive income.
th Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each sub-fund are borne by the respective sub-fund. The praliminary
expenses incurred in the establishment of the Trust and the sub-funds are recognised as expenses of the sub-funds in
the year in which they arise.

(m)  Distributions

The Manager has the absolute discretion to determine whether a distribution is to be made. In such an event, an
appropriate amount will be ransfered to a distribution account to be paid on the distribution date,

() Significant estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial staternents requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilties, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a matenal adustment
tothe carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign
withholding tax. Given the investments in FDI, the dfferences arsing bebween the actual investment income and the
assumplions made, or fulure changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax expense already
recorded. The sub-funds establizh provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by
the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it invests, The amounts of such provisions are based on various
factors, such as experience of previows tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide vanety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective investment's domicile, As the sub-funds assess the probability for litigation and
subsequent cash outficer with respect to taxes as remote, no contingent liability has been recognised,

Refer to Mote 14 for details of taxation.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

(o) Sustalnable Finance Disclosure Regulation

The Sub-Funds do not meet the crteria for Aticle 8 or 9 products under the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Regulation (“SFDOR"); all Sub-Funds are classifiad as Article 6 praducts, and tha investrments underying thase financial
products do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

I addition the Sub-Funds do not consider the principal adverse impacts ("PAIM) of investment decisions being made in
respect of the Sub-Funds on Sustainahbility Factors. The Manager has evaluated the requirements of PAl under the
Disclosures Regulation and is of the view, given the nature and activities of the Sub-Funds, that the PAls are cumenthy
not relevant to the respective strategies of the Sub-Funds.,

3 Financial risk management
The sub-funds’ activities expose them to a variety of risks. including but not limited to market price risk, interest rate
risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk ansing from the financial instruments held, The financial instruments are
held in accordance with the published investment policies of the sub-funds and managed accardingly to achieve the
investrment chjectives.

The risks and the respective risk management policies employed by the sub-funds to manage these risks are discussed
below:

(a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the potential
loss the sub-funds might suffer threugh helding market positions in the face of price movements. Market risk is managed
by the Manager. In the case of these sub-funds, market risk within the Financial Derivative Instrument will be significant,
but is entirely in fine with investor returns. Realised and wnrealised gains are recognised in the staterment of
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the overall market exposures are as follows:

China 2x Bull Fund

2022 20
JPY 000 JPY000
Listed dabt secuntias 217168 231,145
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orless 217168 231 145
Damealivas
-Index swiap transachion 3141 3463
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 3141 3463
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management {continued)
{a) Market price risk {continued)

China Zx Bear Fund

2022 20
JPY000 JPY 000
Listed dabl sacunbias 4742 SE.021
Total financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss 4742 SE.021
Denvatives
=Irden swit transaction 1.507 257
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 1.507 257
Gold 2x Bull Fund
022 2021
JPYO00 SJPY 000
Listed debt sacunties 560 793 07422
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orloss 560 793 BOT 422
Denvatives
-Inden swap transaction 275322 159 703
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 27 522 159,703
Gaold 2x Bear Fund
2022 2021
JPY 000 JPY 000
Listed dabt secunties 8,508 9403
Damvatives
I sweap transaction 236 2,074
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss .04 11477
India 2x Bull Fund
2023 20
JPY000 JPY000
Listed dabl secuntias 123.112 198,228
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orloss 123,112 198 228
Denvatives
=Ardest Swap trarsachon 15,512 2,518
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 15512 2518
India 2x Bear Fund
2022 2021
SJPY000 SJPY000
Listed dabl sacunties 12,734 3,008
Denvatives
-Index; swiap transaction 2841 g
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 675 3.014
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
022 2021
ALD AUD
Performanca iinked notes g2 23273 102 880371
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss §2.243 273 102 880 371
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{a) Market price risk {continued)

ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

2022 2021

ALD AUD
Partarrmanc nkad notes 23017172 30431970
Total financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss 238917172 30.431.8970
U5 Technology 2x Bull Fund

2022 2021

SJPY 000 SJPYO00

Listed dobl secunties 1831575 1,305,127
Dernvatives
Indien: Swap fransachion : 209045
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orloss 1831 575 1514 172
Denvatives
=Indea; swap transaction IT1.372 -
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 371572 -
Us Technology 2x Bear Fund

2022 2021

JPYT000 JPY000

Listed debl sacuntias 440425 3221319
Dwrivatives
-Index swap transaction 71267 -
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 511 692 323319
Denvatives
-Index swap transaction = 71484
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss 1484

The table below is a summary of the significant sector and geographic concentration within the sub-funds’ debt securtties

portfolio as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

2022 2021
China 2x Bull Fund
Falr value % of NAY Falr value % of NMAY
JPY 00D JPY 00D
Japan
Govemment 217 163 57491 231,145 BO.0
2022 2021
China 2x Bear Fund
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value % of MAY
JPY 000 JEY 00D
Japan
Government A7 042 &B.05 58021 065
2022 2021
Gald 2x Bull Fund
Fair value o of NAY Fair value %% of NAY
JPY 00D JPY 00D
Japan
Govammant S60 793 5914 BOF 432 B a4
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{a) Market price risk {continued)
2022 2021
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value % of NAY
SJPY 000 JPY 000
Japan
Govarnmant 8508 G248 0,403 B0.83
2022 2021
India 2x Bull Fund
Fair value % of NAY Fair value % of MAY
JEY 000 JEY 000
Japan
Fovermment 123 112 g 198, 228 T 13
2022 2021
India 2x Bear Fund
Fair value % of NAY Fair value % of MAY
JEY 000 JPY'O0D
Japan
Gavemment 32734 T 56 1005 B5 40
2022 2021
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value % of NAY
AUD AUD
Jersey
Financial B2.243 275 a8 92 102 680,371 Q0.60
2022 2021
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Falr value Yo of NAY Fair value %6 of NAY
AUD AUD
Jargey
Financial 30T AT2 49 86 30,431,870 &4 57
2022 2021
Us Technology 2x Bull Fund
Falr values % of NAY Falr value % of NAY
JPY 000 JPY 000
Japan
Govemment 1831575 43 04 1 305 127 75 61
2022 2021
US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Fair value Yo of NAY Fair value % of MAY
SJPY 000 JPY O
Japan
Gavernmani 440 225 72356 3223149 B8 T3

The sub-funds have open swap contract posiions with J.P. Morgan

geographical concentration of England.

Chase Bank N.A under financial sector with
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)
{a) Market price risk {continued)
Price risk sensitivity provided below is assessed by shifing the relevant undertying index by +1% (30 June 2021: +1%)])

or -1% (30 June 2021: -1%). The sensitivity iz deducted from the change in the derivative price due to the applied shift
and is presented in the currency, as follows:

Fund Undertying  Effect on net Effect on net Effect on net Effect an net

shift in assets M aegets [JPY) - assets % aesets (JPY) =

percentage 30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2021
IChina 2x Bull Fund 1% 1% 3,753 380 1% -MB26
- 1% = 1% -3 7153 388 1% M A28

Chinss 2 Braar Fund 1% ik SU)BTE 1% -2.561
-1% - 1% -530 BTE 1% 2551
[50dd 2 Bull Fund 1% 1% 6,280 254 1% 1,597,030
-1% -1% -6 280 884 1% 1,597 020
IGold 2x Bear Fund 1% 1% 137 076 1% 0,735
- 1% = 1% 137076 1% =20.735

Irchia 2x Bull Furd 1% 104 1,752 858 1% -25.191
= 1% = 1% -1, 752828 1% 25,191
Inchia 2x Berar Fund 1% 1% 462504 1% 104
- - 1% 452 S04 -1% -104
BUID Target Matunty Bond Fund 1% 1% B22 535 1% 1,023,062
609 = 1% = 1% B212.535 1% =1,078.962
JALID Targat Matunty Bond Fund 301612 1% 1% 238172 1% 304 320
1% =1% =237 172 1% =304 520
5 Technology 2¢ Bull Fund 1% 1% 19,680.715 1% 2,080,671
-1% -1% 19,650 715 1% -2 040 671
5 Technology 2x Bear Fund 1% 1% 6,068 092 1% -T14,274
-1% - 1% - 068 092 1% 714,274

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of Auctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on the fair value of
financial assets and liabilities and future cash fows.

China 2x Bull Fund, China 2¢ Bear Fund, Gold 2« Bull Fund, Gold 2« Bear Fund, India 2« Bull Fund, ndia 2« Bear Fund,

LIS Technology 2¢ Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund are exposedto their investment in Japanesa Government

Bonds. When interest rates decline, the value of fixed rate secunties, which may include Japan Government Bonds, can

ga lla_xp-ad:ed to rise. Conversely, when interest rates rise, the value of fixed rate portfolio securities can be expected to
ecline.

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasafincrease of the net assels attributable to unitholders of China 2x Bull Fund by approximately
JPY 832911, 0.22% (30 June 2021: JPY 737,290, 0.28%).

Az at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasafincrease of the net assets attributable to unitholders of China 2x Bear Fund by approximately
JPY 271,985, 0.51% (30 June 2021: JPY 113,205, 0.12%).

Az at 30 June 2022 and 30 Jume 2021, an increaseldecrease ofintarest rates with all other vanables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasafincrease of the net assets attributable to unitholders of Gold 2x Bull Fund by approximately
JPY 3,494 151, 0.568% (30 June 2021: JPY 2,193,439, 0.22%).

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would resultin a decrease/increase ofthe net assets attributable to unitholders of Gold 2x Bear Fund by approximatety
JPY 36,137, 0.26% (30 June 2021: JPY 17,330, 0.11%).

46

168/304



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PassIM Trust

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreaszefincrease of the net assets attributable to unitholders of India 2x Bull Fund by approximatety
JPY 494,108, 0.28% (30 June 2021: JFY 1,112,455, 0.38%).

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increaseldecrease ofinterest rates with all other varables remaining constant,
would resultin a decreasefiincrease of the net assels attributable to unitholders of India 2x Bear Fund by approximately
JPY 253,524, 0.55% (30 June 2021: JPY 29,524, 0.52%).

Az at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasafincrease of the net assels attributable to unitholders of US Technology 2x Bull Fund by
approximately JPY 9,161.827, 0.47% (30 June 2021: JPY 5695555, 0.33%).

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, an increase/decrease ofinterest rates with all other variables remaining constant,
would result in a decreasefincrease of the net assets attributable to unitholders of US Technology 2¢ Bear Fund by
approximately JPY 2,132,608 0.35% (30 June 2021: JPY 1,522.869, 0.32%).
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the sub-funds’ exposure to interest rate risks. They include the sub-funds' assets and
liabilities categorized by the eardier of contractual re-pricing or maturity date.

China 2x Bull Fund
Mon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto1year 1&years Overs years
JEY D00 JEY000 JEY'000 JPY'000 JEY'000

Assets

Fimancial assets

Financial assets at far value throwgh proft or loss HT 168 - - - 217.168

[rterest recaivable T3 . . . 73

Cue from uretholders - - - 1,065 1.065

Managament fea rebate recarabla - - 9413 9413

Cash and cash agquivalanis 135 206 - - - 155 266

Total assets 372 537 - - 10478 383015

Liabilities

Fimancial liabilities

Fimancial kabilities at fair value through proft or loss 3141 - 3,141

Agminstration feo pavable - - - 1,228 1,228

Audt fee payable - - - 175 175

Cud to unitholders - - - 1485 1465

Cther payablies - - - 2 206 & 6

Total liabllites 3,141 - - 5074 a.215
Hon-interest

As at 30 June 2021 bearing Total

Upto1year 1&vyears OverSs years
JPY 000 JPYO00 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPYO0D

Aggets

Fimancial assets

Financial assets at fair value throwgh proft or loss 231,145 - - - 231,145
Irferest recaivable 73 . : . 73
Cue from uratholders - - - a5 395
Management fes rebate recavable - - - 3183 3183
Cash and cash aguivalants Pet el - - - 29 798
Total assels 280518 - - 3578 254 094
Liabilities

Fimancial liabilitie=

Financial liabilibies at fair value through profit or koss 2463 - 3463
Agminsiration e payable - - - 1.255 1.255
Audt fee payable - - - 114 114
Crue o untholders - - - ar ar
Cither paiyables - - - 16 316
Total liakilities 3483 - - 1.TEZ 5 245
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)

China Zx Bear Fund
Mon-interest
Asg at 30 June 2022 hearing Total
Uptoq1year 15 vyears OvwerS years
JEY 000 JEY000 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY'O00

Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets ot fer valug throwgh prodt or 1ess 47,042 : : . 47,042
Irterest mcanvable T - - - T
Amount due from brokoers - - - 10 10
Cue from unitholders - . . 58 358
Management fea rebabte recarabla - - - T.265 7.265
Cash and cash aguivalents 1401 - - - 3401
Total assets 20430 : : rE33 S8.083
Liabllities
Fimancial liabilities
Financial liabilibes at fair valus through profit or loss 1.507 - - - 1.507
Adminstradion e paveble : - 1,227 1,227
Audt fee payable 23 23
Other payables . - - 2,100 2100
Total liakilities 1,507 2 - 3 350 4 85T
Hon-interest
A5 at 30 June 2021 bearing Tatal
Upto1year 16 years OverS years
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY'000
Assets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets at far value throwgh proit or loss 5800 . - - S&.021
Irderast recalvatle 18 . . . 18
Amaunt due from brokers - - - 1 1
Cua from unetholders . - - 299 na
Management fee rebate recaiabla - - - 3147 3147
Cash and cash eguivalents 34 353 - - - 34 853
Total assets Q3 302 - - 3447 0F 339
Liabiities
Fimancial liabilities
Finmancial habiithes at tar valug ihrough proft or es 257 = = = 257
Adminestration fee payable - - - 1.255 1.255
At fee payable . . - 42 42
Othér payaties - - : SE1 381
Total liabilities 257 : 1ETE 2,133
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk (continued)

Gold Zx Bull Fund
Hon-interest
Asg at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto1year 16 vyears OverS years
P 000 JEY000 JPY'000 JPY000 JEY'000
Agssels
Fimancial assets
Financial assets af faarvalug throwgh prodt or less SE0.793 : : . SEQ0.793
Irterest mcanvable 191 - - - 191
Dwe from urstholders - - - 1.010 1.010
Management ee rebale recanable - - - 4 581 4,581
Cash and cash aguivalants 93 160 - - - 93 169
Total assets B54 152 - - 5 501 G539 744
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Financial labilibes at far value ihrough proll or kKess 21322 : 27,522
Agministration e payable - - - 1,227 1.227
Audt fee payable : - - <] 366
Other payables - - - 1,024 1,924
Total liakilities 21 3322 - 3517 30830
Mon<nterest
Asg at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upta 1year 15 years OverSs years
SJPY 000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY'000
Aszets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets at far value throwgh prafit or loss BOTAZ2 - - - BOT 422
Ingrest recaivatle 247 - - - M7
Due from unitholders . . . 443 443
Management fea rebate recarable - - - 2778 2,778
Cash and cash aquivalanis 33 AST - - - 329457
Total assets 1,137 126 - - 32N 1.140,387
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Financial liabilibes at far value through profit or loss 158,703 - 159,703
Adminestration ko payable - - - 1,255 1.255
At fes payable - - - 560 60
Cther payablas - - - B2 632
Total liabilities 159 702 = = 2447 163 150
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Hon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 15 vyears OwerS years
JEY 000 JEY000 JPY 000 JPY000 JEY'000
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets ot far valie throwugh proft or 10Es 9,044 2,044
Irterest mcanvable 3 - 3
Amount due from brokers - 3 3
Management fee rebate recanable - 6,291 E29
Cash and cash agquivalants 1038 - 1,038
Total assets 10 085 5 204 16,379
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Admimstralion ke payable 1,226 1,228
Audi fes payable 1 1"
Cusi fo unitholders g2 g2
Cther payables 1,631 1631
Total liabilities 2962 1062
Hon-interest
Asg at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Up to 1 year 145 years Ower b years
JPY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
Aszets
Financial assels
Financial assets at far value throwgh prafit or loss 11477 11477
Irt@rest recaivable 3 - 3
Managament fae rebate recaiable - 22% 2,256
Cash and cash aguivalants 2 358 - 2 358
Total aszets 13838 2 216 16074
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agminstretion ke panabli 1,255 1,235
At fes payable 15 15
Asmourt due to Drokers 1449 149
COther payables 05 505
Total liakilities 1,924 1,924
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)
India 2x Bull Fund
Hon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 15 vyears OwerS years
JEY 00D SJEY000 JPYO00 JPYO00 JEY000
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial @ssets ol fer valug throwgh proft or [oss 1312 123,112
Irterest mcanvable 45 - 45
Dwe from urstholders - M i |
Managemeant fee rebate recanable - 6,103 103
Cash and cash agquivalants 55 391 63391
Total assets 188 548 5324 104 472
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Financial labiibis &t e valug inrough proht or kKes 13512 = 13312
Agministration ke payable - 1.228 1.228
Ayt fee pavable 107 107
Cuug to unitholders 148 148
Other payables .73 2734
Total liakilities 15512 4 217 19,729
Non-interest
As at 30 June 2021 bearing Tatal
Upto1year 16 years OverS years
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY00D
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets at farvalue throwgh proft or loss 198,228 198228
Interast recaivable 63 - 63
Management fea rebate recarnable - 3257 3,257
Cash and cash aguivalanis 85 531 85531
Total agsels JB3. 822 3,257 287,079
Liabilities
Fimamcial liabilities
Financial liabilibes at far value through profit or loss 2518 - 2514
Agdemirestration ke pavable . 1.255 1,255
At fee payable 150 150
Due to unitholders 170 170
COther payatles - 71 731
Toatal linbilities 2519 2. 306 4. 825
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk (continued)

India 2% Bear Fund
Mon-interest
Asg at 30 June 2022 hearing Total
Upto 1 year 15 vyears OwerS years
P 000 JEY000 JPY'000 JPY000 JEY'000

Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets at tar valug throwgh proft of [o6s 3675 . - - 35,675
Irterest mcanvable 1 - - - 1
Amount due from brokers - - - 13 13
Wanagemeant fee rebate recanable - = - 3,156 3,296
Cash and cash agquivalants 10,301 - - - 10501
Total assets 45 977 - - ] 45 246
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Admimstralion ke payable - - . 1,226 1,228
Audi fes payable - - - i1 g
Cusi fo unitholders . . Mg e
Cther payables - - - 1,736 173G
Total liabilities - - 3316 3316
Hon-interest
Asg at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Up to 1 year 145 years Ower b years
JPY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
Aszets
Financial assels
Financial assets at far value throwgh prafit or loss 3.074 - - - 3.014
Irt@rest receivable 1 = - - 1
Amount due from brokens - . - 1,007 1,00
Cuue from urstholders - - - n 3
Managameant fea rebate recanable - = - 1,383 1,383
Cash and cash aquivalants 207 - - - 507
Total assets 3822 - - 2415 6257
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agdminestration ke pavable . . . 1.255 1,255
At fee payable - - - 3 3
Due to unitholders . . . 1.242 1,242
COther payatles - - - 506 506
Total liabilities - - - 3006 3.006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Interest rate risk {continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

MHon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 15 vyears OwerS years

ALID ALD ALD ALD AUD
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assets ol tar valug through proft or [o6s 32,243,273 - - - B2.243.273
Amount due from brokers - - 10,244 10,249
Cash and cash aquivalanis 350 0E0 - - - 50080
Total assets B2 503 351 - - 10,240 32 603 602
Liabllities
Financial liabilities
Management fiee payable - - - 263 466 263 466
Cwe to unitholders - - - 10,256 10,256
Cthér payables - - : 2485426 2495426
Total liabilities - 2769 148 2 7E3.148

Hon-interest
As at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Uptoq1year 156 years OverS years

ALID AUD AUD ALD AUD
Aszets
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value throwgh prafit or loss - 102880371 - - 102880371
Irterest rmcavabls 184 845 - 184 845
Amount duse from brokers - 191,582 191,583
Cash and cash aguivalanis a3 865 - - - 03 865
Total aszets ZT8.710 102 880371 - 191,583 103 350 G54
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Managament lie payahie - - . 202,214 202,214
D o unithalders - - - 191,216 191,16
Cither payables - - - 2,182 537 2182537
Total llakilities - - - 2 575 Q5T 2 575 067
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
(b} Interest rate risk {continued)
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Mon-interest
A at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Upto 1 year 16 vyears OverS years

ALD aUD AUD AUD AUD
Assels
Fimancial assets
Financial as5ats & far value throsgh proft or [oss 23T T2 . 23017172
Amount due from brokers - 04,435 94 435
Cash and cash aguivalanis 57,123 - 57 123
Total assets 23474 295 04 435 34 065 T30
Liabllities
Fimancial liabilities
Management fiee payable 36,878 16,878
Cue to unitholders 04 200 94,290
Cithér peyables B52.275 B32.275
Total liabilities 783442 TEZ 443

Mon-nterest
Asg at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Uptoq1year 156 years OverS years

ALD auD ALUD AUD AUD
Aszets
Financial assels
Financial assets at fair value throwgh prafit or loss - 30431870 30,431,870
Irterest rmosivable 817 - g
Cash and cash equivalants 62 951 - 62,951
Total assets B TEE 30431570 30485738
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Management fes payabla 45,214 452114
Cithar payaties SE8.210 SE&.210
Total liakilities : 615424 613424
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
(b} Interest rate risk {continued)
U5 Technology 2x Bull Fund
Mon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Uptoq1year 15 vyears OverS years
JFY 00D SJPY000 JPYO00 JPY 000 JEYO00
Assels
Fimancial assets
Financial @ssets ol fear valug Ihrough proft or 1oss 1831573 1,831,575
Inerest recaivable 4492 - 492
Management fea rebabe recarable - B&3 683
Cash and cash aquivalents 61,853 - 561,823
Total assels £.3890 830 BE3 2384 573
Liabilities
Fimamcial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss aTiaTz - aTiar2
Admimsiration payable - 1.368 1,368
Audt fee payable 3084 3,089
Amourit dué 1o brokirs 11,964 11,964
Cue to unitholders 21,506 21,506
Other payaties . 16,827 16.927
Total liakilities AT1372 54 044 426 316
Mon-interest
As at 30 June 2021 bearing Total
Upto1year 16 years OverS years
SJPY 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPY000 JEYO00
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial assels ol far value throwgh prodt or [oss 1514,172 1514172
Irderast recaivable i) - 289
Amourt due from brokers - 3836 3,836
Dug rom uniholders 163049 163,049
Managament fea rebate recaiabla - 1,323 1,323
Cash and cash eguivalants 115,984 - 1158594
Total agsets 1.630.355 168208 1.798.563
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agdminstration ke payable 611 611
At les payable 3,197 3197
Amount dué to brokars 17657 17,847
Dwie o undholdars 33,506 33,896
Other payables 1T 448 17 448
Total liabilities 73049 73,049
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
{b) Interest rate risk (continued)

UE Technelogy 2x Bear Fund
Hon-interest
As at 30 June 2022 bearing Total
Uptoq1year 15 vyears OverS years
JFY D00 SJEY000 JPYO00 JPY000 JEY000
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Financial @s5ets ol fear valug throwgh proft or [oss S11.692 - - - 511,692
Irtarest mcanvable i - - - 65
DCwe from urstholders - 42815 42815
Managameant 66 rebate recanable - 1931 1,931
Cash and cash egquivalants 59 036 - - - 59036
Total assets 570,742 - - 44 146 B15 539
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agdminstration payable - - . 1.268 1,368
Audd fes payable - - - az 392
Amourit due to brokers . - . 3638 3638
Cther payables - - - 3411 2411
Total liakilities - - B.809 809
Hon-interest
As at 30 June 2021 bearing Total

Up to 1 year 146 years  Overb years
P 000 JPY000 JPY000 JPYO00 JPY'O00

Aszets

Financial agsets

Financial assets at far value throwgh prafit or loss 3r2318 - - - J22.514
Interest receivable 53 . - - 53
Amount dui from brokers - - 1,212 1,313
Cue from urstholders - - - a8 g9
Managemant fee rebate recawable . - - 230 2320
Cash and cash aquivalants 20 318 - - - 2200316
Total assets 542 AEE - - 3732 546420
Liabilities

Fimancial liabilities

Fmancial labikbes at tair value theough proft or bes 71484 - 71484
Administration fes payable - - - 611 611
At fed payabla - - e B91 &1
D to uniholders - - - 442 492
Other payabdes - - - 4 524 4 524
Total liakilities 71484 - - G518 T8.002

{c) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fuctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The sub-funds may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in currencies other than its
functional currency. Consequently, the sub-funds are exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional curmency
redative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse impact on the value of that portion of
the sub-funds' assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the sub-funds functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management {continued)
(€ Currency risk (continued)

The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2« Bear Fund, Geld 2x Bull Fund, Geld 2x Bear Fund, India 2« Bull Fund,
India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technalogy 2x¢ Bear Fund hold monetary azzets denominated
in currencies ciher than the Japanese Yen, the functional currency. The sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund
201609 and AUD Target Matunty Bond Fund 201612, hold monetary assets denominated in currencies other than the
Australian Dollar, the functional currency. Currency risk, as defined in IFRS 7, arises as the value of future transactions,
recognized monetary assets and monetary liabiities demominated in other currencies fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. Under IFRS 7, the foreign exchange exposure relating bo non-monetary assets and liakdities is
considerad to ba a component of market price risk instead of foreign exchange risk.

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund Gold 2x Bull Fund,
Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2« Bear Fund AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target
Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2¢ Bear Fund there has been a reduced
foreign curmency risk, as the sub-funds investments are in the functional curmency of the sub-fund,

The tables below summanse the sub-funds’ inancial assets and [rabilites which are exposad to the risk associated with
the effects of Auctuations in the prevailing levels of currency risk on its financial position and cash flows, which are as
fioll s

China Zx Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2022
usD

JPY 000
Assets
Fimancial assets
Cither recedvables and prepaymant 198
Total assets 198
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Adminstration e pavale 1.228
Aupdt fee payable 175
Cthar payables 2. 206
Total liabilities 3604
Met currency exposure 3411}
A= at 30 June 2021

usD

JPY 000
Assets
Fimancial aszels
Cther recetvables and prapaymnant 824
Total aszets .24
Liabilities
Fimamcial liabilities
Agministration ke pavable 1255
Al fes payabla 114
Cither payables 316
Total liabllities 1 685
Met currency éxposure _EJ_W
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)

i

Currency risk (continued)

China Zx Bear Fund

As at 30 June 2022
usD

JPY000
Assets
Financial assels
Other recéivables and prapaymant 198
Total assets 188
Liabiitias
Fimancial liabilities
Agdministration fee payable 1.227
Audt fes payable 23
Cthar payabies 2.100
Total linbilities 3350
Met currency exposure [ERER]
As at 30 June 2021

uso

JPY000
Assels
Fimancial assets
Gther recelvabdes and prepaymant 1,454
Total assets J 454
Liabilities
Fimanmcial liabflities
Adminsiralion ko payvable 4 955
Audt fes payable 42
Other payables 581
Total liakilities 1,878
Met currency exposure {424)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)

{c) Currency risk (continued)

Gald 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2022
usD

JEY000
Assets
Financial assets
Other receivables and prepaymant 198
Total assets 198
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Administration lee payable 1.227
At few payable 366
COther payables 1,924
Total liabllities 3517
Met currency exposure (3.319)
As at 30 June 2021

usD

JPY000
Assets
Fimancial asseis
Other recetvables and prepayment 1113
Total assels 1113
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Administration fee payable 1.255

At fee payable

Cithar payables

Total liakilities

Met currency xposure
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
(e

Financial risk management {continued)

Currency risk {continued)

Gold 2x Bear Fund

As at 30 June 2022

Aszets

Financial assets

Cither recetvables and prepaymeant
Total assels

Liabilities

Fimancial liabilities
Administration fee payvable
Audl fee payabla

Cither payables

Total liakilities

Met currency exposure

As at 30 June 2021

Aszets

Financial agsets

Othar rxcewabdirs and prapaymant
Total assets

Linbilities

Fimancial liabilitie=
Adminstration ke payvable
At fes payable

Cither payables

Total liakilities

Met currency expasuns

India 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2022

Aszets

Fimancial assets

Other receivabdes and prepaymant
Total assets

Liablities

Fimancial liabilities
Agministration fee payable
Audt fee pavable

Other payables

Total liakilities

Met currency exposure

usoD
JPY000

194
1898

1,255

505
1,775

.'i'IEBE

usp
JPY000

103

1,228

1ar
273
4 053

3BT
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3 Financial fisk management (continued)
{c) Currency risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2021
usD

JPYD00
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Qther cewvabdes and prepasmant 387
Total assels 387
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agmiristralion ked panable 1,255
Audt fee payable 150
Cther payables 131
Total liakilities 2136
Met eurrency exposure (1,749}
India 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2022

usD

SJPY D
Assets
Fimancial assets
Qther recetvables and prepayment 1ag
Total agsets 198
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities

Administration e payable
At fee payable
Cther payables

Total liakilities
Met currency exposure
As at 30 June 2021
usD

SJPYR00
Assels
Financial assets
Cither receivables and prepayment 1,290
Total assets 1,290
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Administration ke payable 1,255
Audl fee payabla 3
Other payables 506
Total liakilities | 764
Met currency exposure [ERLY]
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)

f<h

Currency risk (continued)

LS Technology 2x Bull Fund

As at 30 June 2022

Aszets

Fimancial assets

Other recevables and prepayment
Total aszets

Liabilities

Fimancial liabilities
Administration e payable
At few payable

Other payables

Total liakilites

Met currency exposure

A5 at 30 June 2021

Assets
Fimancial assets

usp
JPY000

257
357

1,368

3.089

16,927

71,384

21,127)

uso

JPY'O00

Other recetvables and prepayment 541
Total assels 541
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agdministration fe payable G114
At fee payable 3187
Cithar payables 17448
Total liabilities 21295
Met currency exposure (20,715}
US Technology 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2022
ush

JPY000
Azgets
Fimancial assets
Other recstvables and prepaymant 257
Total assets 257
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Administration fee payable 1,368
Ayt fee payabla 392
Cther payables 3411
Total liakilities 5171
Met currency exposuns (4.9 |-1-"
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
c)

Financial risk management (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2021
UsD

JPY000
Assels
Fimancial assets
Qther recevables and prepaymant 535
Total assels 35
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agmiristralion ked panable B11
Audt fee payable a1
COther payables 4 534
Total liakilities 5026
Met eurrency exposure [5.491)

Az at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201 609 and AUD Target Matwrity
Bond Fund 201612 financial assets and liabilities are denominated in the functional currency and there has been no
exposure to foreign currency risk.

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to discharge its obligations and causes the
sub-funds toincur a Bnancial less. The sub-funds seek to minimise the risk of loss by careful choosing the counterparties
and by minimising the reliance placed on individual counterparties.

Investors should be aware that the sub-funds use dervatives such as swap transactions. When a swap transaction
approaches maturity they may increase in value to reflect the amounts payable to the sub-funds and consequently could
represent an increased portion of the MNet Asset Value of a sub-fund. No guarantee is given, express or implied, that
Unitholders will receive back the amount of their investment in the Units.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Financial risk management (continued)

{d) Credit risk {continued)

China 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAV
Dbt secuntss A1 SAF Global 5741
30 June 2021
Dbt secuntws A1 SAP Global aa.0
China 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAY
Dbt secuntes A1 58P Global 88.05
30 June 2021
Dbt secuntes A 8P Global 6065
Gold Zx Bull Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAV
Debt secuntes A1 S4P Global a8 14
30 June 2021
Dbt secuntes A1 S4P Global 8244
Gald 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating % of HAY
Dbt secuntess &1 S8F Global 6249
30 June 2021
DCuxbt Socunlses A 8P Global 60 53
India 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating % of NAV
Dbt secunims A 58P Global TO.1
30 June 2021
Dbt Secuanises A1 SEP Globa T0.13
India 2% Bear Fund
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating Yo of NAY
Dbl sacuntas A1 S&P Global 7056
30 June 2021
Dbt socuntas A1 S&P Global G649
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
30 June 2022

Credit rating Source of credit rating % of NAY
Perfarmandce inked naote Mot Rated 58P Global 946.92
30 June 2021
Performance inked note Mot Rated S8F Global 094 &)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3.
(d)

Financial risk management {continued)
Credit risk {continued)
ALID Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
30 June 2022
Credit rating
Performance inked note Kot Rated
30 June 2021
Performancs inked note Kot Rated
S Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2022
Credit rating
Dbt secuntes B
30 June 2021
Dbt secuntes A
IS Technology 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2022
Credit rating
Dbt secunties A1
30 June 2021
Dbt secuntes A1

Source of credit rating
SEP Global

S4P Global

Source of credit rating
S5EP Global

SEP Global

Source of credit rating
SAP Clobal

SAP Global

Yo of MAW
00,85

9457

Yo of NAY
9304

7561

% of MAW

7256

68,73

The sub-funds measure credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure of default and loss
given default. The Manager considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining anmy

expected credt loss.

Az at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the sub-funds had all its individual counterparty risk with J.P. Morgan Chase
Bank M.A. and BMP Paribas Securities Services operating through its Singapore Branch. J.P. Morgan Chase Bank M.A,
has a credit rating of A2 (30 June 2021; AZ) on Moody's and equivalent ratings with S&P Global and Fitch, BNP Paribas
Securities Services operating through its Singapore Branch has a credit rating of Aa3 (30 June 2021; Aa3) on Moody's
and equivalent ratings with S&P Global and Fitch. The counterparties are expected to settle the outstanding within 1

weak,

The Manager considers the probability of default to be close to 2ero as the counterparties have a strong capacity to meat

their contractual cbligations in the near term.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3.
()

Financial isk management (continued)
Counterparty risk

In order to monitor the exposure to the counterparty, sub-funds have to limit their exposure to a counterparty at a certain
percentage of their AW, This is done through the delivery by the counterparty ofthe sub-funds of securities as collateral.

Collateral securities relative to the sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear
Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, india 2x Bear Fund, LS Technology 2x Bear Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund, are
measured at fair value on a daily basis.

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the sub-funds valuation of the collateral securities held with/used by J.P. Morgan
Chase Bank N_& are set out below:

Derivative Collateral

waluation heldiused) Net exposure

JPY 000 JPY000 JEY DD
As at 30 June 2022
China 2x Bull Fund 13,141) SO0 [2.541)
China 2x Bgar Fund {1.507) 1507 -
Gokd 2x Bull Fund {2r.3zx2) 26670 {852}
zokd Ix Bear Fund 336 (44} 4492
India 2x Bull Fund {15.512) 15512 -
India 2x Bear Fund 2,041 (2,549} 292
US Technology 2 Bull Fund {371,372) 308037 (63 335)
US Technology 2« Beéar Fund 71,267 {71,267} -

Derivative Collateral

waluation heldffuzed by} MNet exposure

JPYT00 JPYTO00 JPY 000
As at 30 June 2021
China 2u Bull Fund 13,463) - (3 463}
China 2x Bear Fund (257} 257 -
Zobd 2x Bull Furnd {158, T03) 145410 [14 283}
Gokd 2x Bear Fund 2,074 {1834} 244
India 2x Bull Fund {2.519) 2514 -
India 2x Baar Fund g - B
L5 Technology 2« Bull Fund 0 045 {142 587) GE 058
S Technology 2 Bear Fund (71,354) 20,748 [14.736)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3
n

Financial risk management {continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the sub-funds may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle their cbligations
in full as they fall due or can only do =0 on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

In the case of subscriptions or redemptions, the Manager will respectively purchase or sell the equivalent amount of the

Financial Dervative Instrument.

To that extent, each sub-fund benefits from daily liquidity on each Financial Derivative Instrument. The swap
Counterparty is engaged in providing each sub-fund with daily liquidity. In case of subscriptions or redemptions, the
Manager will invest the equivalent amount in cash or in accordance with its investment objective.

The table below analyses the sub-funds’ financial liabilities inte relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the year end date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts inthe table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, Balances due within 12 months equal their carmying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

China Zx Bull Fund

Financial habilies at fair value through profl or ss
Agdministration ke payable

Audt fee payable

Cwia to unitholders

Cither payables

Total liabllities

China Ix Bear Fund

Financial liabilibes at fair value through profit or lass
Administration ke payable

Audl feer payabla

COther payables

Total liakilities

2022 2021
Less than & Less than &
months months
JFY'O00 JRY000
2,141 3463
1,228 1.255
175 114
1,465 ar
2,206 316
8.215 5 M5
2022 2021
Less than 6 Less than &
manths maenths
JEYO00 JPY000
1.507 257
1,227 1.255
23 42
2100 581
4 857 2135
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management {continued)
if Liquidity risk {continued)

Gold Zx Bull Fund
22 2021
Less than & Less than &
manths maonths
JEYO00 JPY000
Financial kabilities at fair valug theough profl or ss 21382 199,703
Administration e payable 1.227 1.255
Apdt fes payable 86 560
Qther payaties 1504 B32
Total liakilities 30,839 162 180
Gold 2x Bear Fund
w22 2021
Less than 6 Less than 6
manths months
JPYO00 JPY00
Admirestraion ke peyvable 1,228 1.255
Audt fes payable 11 15
Amount due Lo Do kers - 148
D to unithalders a2 -
Other payabies 1631 505
Total liakilities 2087 1,924
India 2x Bull Fund
22 2021
Less than & Less than &
manths manths
JEYO00 JPY000
Fmancial habilbes at tair valug through proht or kes 15912 2.919
Agdministration e payable 1,228 1.255
Audd fee payable 107 150
D to unitholders 148 170
COther payables 27344 731
Total liabilities 19.728 4 825
India 2x Bear Fund
Mz ey |
Less than & Less than &
manths manths
JPYTO00 JPY000
Administration fee payable 1.228 1.255
Ayt fes payable G i
DCue 1o unitholders M6 1.242
Cither payables 1,736 506
Total liabilities 3316 3006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3.
(n

Financial fisk management (continued)
Liquidity risk {continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

Management fee payable
Caue to unitholders

Cther payables

Total liakilities

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

Managament les payabie
i to unitholders

Other payables

Total liakilities

UF Technology 2x Bull Fund

Financial liabilibes at fair value through profit or loss
Adminestration ke payalle

At fee payable

Arnount due [0 Drokers

D to unidholders

Other payables

Total liabilities

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund

Financial liabilibes at fair valus through profit or loss
Admimstralion ks payvalie

Awdt fee payable

Amoint due to Drokers

Cwai to unitholders

Cither payables

Total liabilities

The sub-funds manage their liguidity risk by investing predominantly in securities that they expect to be able to liquidate

within 1 month or less.

2022 2021
Less than & Less than &
manths maonths
ALID AUD
263 466 202,214
10,256 191,215
2405 436 2183 53T
2. TEE 148 2575 967
022 2021
Less than & Lessthan &
manths manths
ALD AUD
36,678 45,274
94,290 -
G52 2T5 584210
TE3 443 613 424
2022 20
Less than & Less than &
manths manths
JPYO00 JPY000
311,372 -
1,368 611
3089 314ar
11,5654 17 697
21,588 33,806
16,827 17 448
426316 73,049
a2 ruiral
Less than & Less than &
manths manths
JEYO0D JPY000
- T1a84
1,368 611
3a2 ga
3638 .
- 492
2411 4 524
E.E0Y Ja.002
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

3 Financial fisk management (continued)
{s)] Capital risk management

The sub-funds' capital is represented by the units in the sub-funds and shown as net assets attributable to unitholders
on the statement of financial position. In order to achieve the investment objectives, the sub-funds endeavour to invest
their capital in accordance with the investment policies as ocutlined in Mote 1, whilst maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet
redemplion requests. Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments.

4. Fair value measurement

The sub-funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements, The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1- Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites that the sub-funds
have the ability to access at measurement date;

Imvestments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and are therefore classified within level
1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset of liabdity either directly or indiractly, including
inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2. As level 2

investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and'or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations
may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity andfor non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Lewvel 3 - Inputs that are unobservable.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categonized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the
significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. If 2 fair value measurement uses
obsenvable inputs that require significant adjustment based on uncbservable inputs, that measurement is a level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes “cbservable” requires significant judgment by the Managers. The Managers
consider chservable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively invelved in the relevant market.

7
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement {continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the sub-funds® financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value at yvear end date;

China 2x Bull Fund

Ag at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 P00 JPY 000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assols ot far value
thraugh proft or loss
Dbt secuntes 217 168 217 168
Tabal 217,168 217 168
Fimancial Liabilites
Financial liabikbies at fair valua
through proft or loss
Denvatives
- Index swiap transaction 3141 1 141
Total 3141 311
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JP JPY 000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assets at farvalus
through pro#t or loss
Dbt securites 231,145 231 145
Tatal 231 145 31 145
Fimancial Liakilities
Financial liabilibes at fair valus
thraugh prodt of less
Denvatves
= Index swap transaction 3453 3463
Total 3463 3483
China 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY 000 JPY 000 JP O JPY'000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assets at fair valus
trrough prodt or loss
Dbt secunties AT (42 47 (43
Tolal 47,042 47, 042
Fimancial Liabllitie=
Financial iiabilibies at fair valus
through proft or loss
Denvatives
= Indéx swigp transachion 1 507 1,307
Tobal 1,507 1,507
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, Fair value measurement {continued)
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 P00 JPY 000
Fimancial Assets
Fimancial assets at fervalug
trrough proft or loss
Dbt securlas 58021 58021
Tatal 58021 58 021
Fimancial Liakilities
Financial liabilibies at fair value
trrough pro#t or loss
Denvatives
- Index swiap transaction 257 257
Tatal - 257 357
Gold 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P 000 JPY000 P JPY 000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through pro#t or loss
Dbt secunties 560,793 560 793
Tabal 560,783 260, 793
Fimancial Liabilites
Financial liabilities at fair valus
through proft or loss
Denvatives
- Index swiap transaction 17 53X 27 321
Total FIEFF] FIEY T
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JP JPY 000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assels at fair value
through proft oriloss
Duxbl secuntes g07 422 J07 432
Total BOT 432 A07T 433
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilibies at far valua
throuah pro#t or loss
D rvatives
= Indax swiap transachion 159,703 159, 703
Total 1589 703 158,703
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4,

Fair value measurement {continued)

Gaold 2x Bear Fund
A3 at 30 June 2022

Fimancial Assets
Financial assels at farvalue
thraugh proft or loss
Dbt secuntss
Dwrivatives

- Index swap transaction
Tatal

As at 30 Jurne 2021

Fimancial Assets
Financial @ssets at far valie
through proft or loss
Dabt secunties
Dervatives
- Index swiap transaction

Total

India 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2022

Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value
trrougi prodt or loss
Dbt Soacinivges
Total
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilibies at fair valus
through prof] or loss
Currivalives

- Index swiap transaction

I otal

As at 30 June 2021

Fimancial Assets
Financial assats at far value
through proft or loss
Duxbl socunls
Total
Fimancial Liabilities
Financial habilities at fair valus
through proft or loss
Dwenvatives

- Index sweap transaction
T otal

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPYTO00 JPY 000 JPY 000 JEY'O00
8.508 &.508
- 535 536
B 508 538 O.0es
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEYTO00 JPY 000 JPY 00D JEYO00
9,403 G403
- 3074 2074
0,403 2074 11477
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JEY D00 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY'000
123112 123,11
122,112 122,112
15612 15 512
- 15512 15 512
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPYT000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
198,228 V9B 238
188,238 185 X8
2513 2519
1513 2519
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement {continued)

India 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JEY 000 JPY 000 JP Y000 JEY'000
Fimancial Assets
Financial assels at farvalue
thraugh proft or loss
Dbt secuntss 32,734 - - 32734
Dwrivatives
- Index swiap transaction - 3 a41 - 2841
Tatal 32,7134 2941 - 35 675
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEYTO00 JPY 000 JPY 00D JEYO00
Fimancial Assets
Financial assets at farvalug
through proft or loss
Dbt seciantms 3,006 - - 3,006
Dervatives
- Index swiap transackion - # - &
Total 3 006 ] - 1014
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
As at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ALUD AUD AUD AUD
Financial Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through pro#t or loss
Parformance bnkad note 52243 273 : 52243 373
Total 52243273 - B2 241373
Asg at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
ALD AUD AUD ALID
Financial Assets
Financial asssts at fair value
through profl or lass
Performance inked note - 102 880 371 - 102 380 371
Tobal - 102 830 571 - 102 880,371
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
As at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
ALID ALID AUD ALID
Fimancial Assets
Financial assels al far value
through proft orloss
Perfarmanca inkéed note - 23817 172 - 23817172
Tobal - 23917172 - FENEER T
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Tatal
ALID ALID AUD AUD
Fimancial Aggets
Financial assets at fair value
through proft or loss
Performandce inked note - 30431970 - 20,431,970
Total - 30431970 - 10 431,970
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4,

Fair value measurement {continued)

LIS Technology 2x Bull Fund
Asg at 30 June 2022

Fimancial Assets
Financial assels at farvalue
thraugh proft or loss
Dbt secuntss
Total
Fimancial Liakilities
Financial iabihbes at tar value
through proft or loss
Demvalives

- Indeéx swiap transaction
Total

Ag at 30 June 2021

Fimancial Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through pro#t or logss
Debt secuntes
Do rveatiniigs

- Index swiap transachion
Talal

LS Technology 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2022

Fimancial Assets
Financial assels al far valus
trrough proft or loss
Dbl secuntes
Currvalives

- Index swiap transaction
Total

As at 30 June 2021

Fimancial Assets
Financial assats at far value
trrough proft or loss
Duxbl socuntus
Total
Fimancial Liabilities
Financial habilities at fair valus
through proft or loss
Denvatives

- Index sweap transaction
T otal

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPYTO00 JPY 000 JPYO00 JEY'O00
1,831,575 1,831,575
1 831 575 1831575
371,372 2
3715372
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
LJPYO00 JPY 000 JP00D JPY 000
1,308,127 1308427
- 200 045 200 045
1,305,127 208 045 1514 172
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY D000 JP Y000 JPYO00
440 425 440 475
- 71387 71,387
4411 425 71267 511 642
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPYT000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
3223149 322318
322318 322319
71434 71434
T1454 11484

Investments that are valued based on quoted market prices in active markets, such as active listed equities and listed
futures centracts, are classified within level 1. The sub-funds do not adjust the quoted prices for these investments.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by cbservable inputs, such as unlisted debt secunties and
over-the-counter derivatives, are classified within level 2.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement {continued)
There were no movements between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Sub-Funds’ assets and liabiliies not measured at fair
value at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 but for which fair value is disclosed.

China 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2022

Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P 000 JPY 000 JPY000 SJPY 000
Asgets
Fimancial azsets
Irterest mcaivable . [¥] - T3
D from urslholders - 1.065 - 1085
Management fes rebate recanabla - G413 - G413
Other recsivables and prepaymant - 198 - 158
Cash and cash eguivalants 155 206 - - 155 208
Total 155 206 10,748 - 166 045
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Cue to unithalders - 1,465 - 1 AES
Accrued axpensas - 3 609 - 3 604
Total - 5074 - 5074
China 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 00D JPY 000 SJPY000 SJPYO00
Asgets
Fimancial assets
Irterest receivable - T3 - FE]
e from ursthiolders - 385 - it o]
hanagement fes rebate recavabla - 3,183 - 3183
Othar recevabdes and prepayman = 824 : 824
Cash and cash agquivalants 28 288 . - 13 158
Total 29 208 4475 - 33773
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Cuie 1o unitholders - ar - T
Accnued expenseas - 1,685 - 1 685
Total - 1,782 - 1,782
China 2x Bear Fund
Asg at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P 000 JPY 000 P00 JPY 000
Aszets
Financial assels
Irterest meceaivable - T - 7
Amaount due Trom Drokens . 10 : 10
D from uretholders . 358 . 358
hanagement fiee rebate recarable - 1,265 - 7.265
Othar racsvatdis and prapaymant E 198 TG
Cach and cash agquivalanis 340 - - 3401
Total 340 1 838 : 11,2339
Liabliities
Financial liabilities
Agvrued expanses - 3 350 - 3 530
Total - 3,350 - 3,350
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Fair value measurement {continued)
China 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assets
Fimancial assets
Irterest recaivable 18 18
Amount due from brokers 1 1
Crug from wrlholders 2949 290
Management fee rebabe recabvabls 3147 3147
Cther recetvabdes and prepaymant - 1,454 1454
Cash and cash aguvalants 34 B53 - 34 553
Total 34 853 4 9149 ]
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Accrued expensas 1,878 1 878
Total 1,878 1 8T8
Gold 2x Bull Fund
Ag at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assels
Fimancial azsets
Irarest recanable 191 19
Cue from urstholders 1,010 1,010
Kanagament oo rohate racanablé a2.581 2581
Cither recervables and prapaymant - 198 188
Cash and cash egquivalanis 43 160 - 93 160
Total a3 164 5880 99149
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Accrued expansas 3517 3517
Total 3517 3517
Gald 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P 000 JEY'000 JPY000 JPY'000
Aszets
Fimancial assets
[rterest recenvable T 247
Cuwe from wurstholders 493 493
Managament fes rebate recerabla 2,778 2778
Othar rcivatdis and prapasmant . 1.193 1,113
Cash and cash aguvalanis 129 457 123457
Total 29 457 4 631 334 08B
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilitiez
Agrruid axpansos 2447 I447
Total 2447 2447
7a
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4, Fair value measurement {continued)
Gaold 2x Bear Fund
A3 at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assets
Fimancial assets
Irterest recaivable - i - 3
Amount due from brokers 3 3
Managament fee rebabe recanable - 6,291 - 5,291
Other recetvables and prepaymeant - 198 - 148
Cash and cash equivalanis 1,038 - - 1038
Total 1018 6495 - 7533
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Dute fo unitholders - 92 - a2
Accrued expensas - 2870 - 2870
Total - 2 952 - e[
Gold 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assels
Fimancial azsets
Irtarest recanvable - i 3
Management fee rebate recenable - 2.236 2236
Other recewvabdes and propayman E 1,307 1,307
Cash and cash aquivalants 2358 - 2358
Total 2358 3546 5 004
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilitiez
Asmaunt due to brokars - 1449 - 1449
Accnued expensas - 1,775 - 1,775
Total - 1,924 - 1 924
India 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
P 000 JEY'000 JPY000 JPY'000
Aszets
Fimancial assets
[rterest recenvable - 45 - 45
Cuwe from wurstholders . redl 221
Managament fes rebate recerabla - 6,102 - 103
Othar rcivatdis and prapasmant . 196 . 1985
Cash and cash aguivalants 55 391 . o 391
Total 65 391 6567 - 71958
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilitiez
Cruia 1o unithokdars - 145 . 148
Accryid expansas - 4 069 - 4 063
Total - 4.7 - 4 217
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4,

Fair value measurement {continued)

India 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021

Assets

Fimancial assets

Irtarest recavable

wanagemeant fes rebate recanabla
Cither receivabldes and prapaymant
Cash and cash eguvalanis

Total

Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Dwe o unitholders
Accnued expenses
Total

India 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2022

Assels

Financial assets

Irterest receivable

Amount due from brokers
Wanagement fes rebate recanabla
Other recewvables and prapayment
Cash and cash aquivalants

Total

Liabilities
Fimancial liabilitiez
Crue o unitholders
Accryed expensas

Tatal

India 2x Bear Fund
As at 30 June 2021

Aszets

Fimancial assets

[rierest receivable

Amount due from brokers

DCwe from uetholders
Managamant feé robate racanabla
Cther mosvables and prepaymant
Cash and cash aguivalanis

Total

Liabiiities
Fimancial liabilities
Do o uritingbders:
Aconued expenses
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY000
B3 =]
3,357 3257
- 387 38T
£5 531 - 85 531
#5531 3,707 ]
170 170
2136 135
2 308 2308

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY D00 JPY 000 SJPYO00 JPY 00D
1 1
1% 132
3,256 3256
- 188 198
10201 - 10 301
10,301 3 AGE 13,769
46 5348
2,470 2ATH
3318 3316

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 000 JEY 000 JPY000 JFY'000
1 1
1,001 1001
3 £3 |
1,383 1,383
- 1,250 1,250
gOT - 07
BOT 3706 4513
1,242 1,242
1,764 1,764
3,008 3 008
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Fair value measurement {continued)
ALUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201608
Az at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD ALUD AUD AUD
Assets
Fimancial azsets
Amaunt due from brokers - 10,249 - 10,244
Cther receivables and prepaymant - 2,476 909 - 2476 000
Cash and cash aguvalants 250,080 - - 350 08D
Total 50080 2 487 158 - 2 837 218
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Caaig 1o untholders . 10,356 - 10,256
Actrued éxpensas - 2. 758 892 - 2 758 842
Total - 2. TG8 148 - 2 V5 148
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609
Ag at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ALUD AUD AUD AUD
Asggets
Finmancial assets
Irderest recaivatle . 184,845 . 184 545
Amount due from brokers - 141,533 - 191 5683
Cither recervables and prapaymant - 2517043 - 2517043
Cash and cash egquivalanis 23 865 - - 93 865
Total 93 BES 2E934T1 - 2,587 336
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
DCwe to unitholders - 191,216 - 191,216
Accnued expensas - 2384 751 - 2384 751
Total - 2575967 - 2 575 967
AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
As at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD ALD AUD ALD
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Amount due from brokers - 44 435 - 435
Cithar v abies and prpayment - 666,362 - GGG 362
Cash and cash equivalants 57123 - - 57 123
Total 57,123 TE0, 79T - B17 920
Liabllities
Fimamcial labilities
Cuii to unitholders . 34,290 - 34,2590
Accnued expenseas - G50 153 - B85 153
Total - TE 443 - TE3 443

&1
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
4. Fair value measurement {continued)

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612
Ag at 30 June 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AUD ALUD AUD AUD
Assets
Fimancial assets
Interest recaivable - LAk - 817
Cither recetvabdes and prepaymant - 679,700 - 619,700
Cash and cash aguvalants 52851 - - 52951
Total 528951 BE0517 - 743 AGE
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
ALy BXpENSes - 513,424 - G134.24
Total - 613424 - Bi3424
LI% Technology 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2022
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY D00 JPYO00 JPYO00 JPY OO0
Assels
Fimancial azsets
Irtares] recanvable - 492 - 492
Managament fiea rabate recarable - 683 - GE3
Cther recetvables and prepaymant - 5T - 257
Cash and cash aguvalants 361 821 - - 561823
Total £61 823 1432 - 563 255
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Amount due to brokers - 11,964 - 11,064
D o unitholders - 21,596 - 21,596
Accnued expensas - 21,384 - 1.384
Total - 54 044 - 54 044
LS Technology 2x Bull Fund
As at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JEY 00D JPYD00 JPYO00 SJPY D00
Agsets
Fimancial assets
Interest recaivable - 254 - 284
Armount dug fnom Drokers - 3,836 - 3836
Cue from umtholders - 163,049 - 183,049
Managament leg rebate recaablé - 1,323 1323
Other recervabdes and prepaymeant - 541 - 541
Cash amnd cash aguvabans 115,804 - - 115804
Total 115,694 168,038 - J84 932
Liabllities
Fimancial liabilities
Amount due to brokers - 17,897 - 17,847
Cua 1o unitholdérs . 13 896 . 33,895
Agtrued expanses - 21,2565 - 21,256
Total - 73,049 - 73,049
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

4, Fair value measurement {continued)
U5 Technology 2x Bear Fund
Az at 30 June 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 00D JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assets
Fimancial azsets
Irterest recaivable 85 &5
Cue from uritholders 428315 42815
Managament e rebabe recanable 1.931 1,931
Other receivables and prepaymant - = 257
Cash and cash equivalenis SO0 50 035
Total 50038 45 088 10 104
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilities
Agriount due to bokers 3,638 3638
Accrued expensas 5171 5171
Total & 804 8 80
U5 Technology 2x Bear Fund
Ag at 30 June 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY 000 JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000
Assels
Fimancial agsets
Irterast recanvable 33 33
Amount due from brokens 1,313 A13
e from wrslholders: a9 EEE]
Managament fse rebabe recanable 2,320 2500
Cther recedvabdes and prepayment - 538 535
Cagh and cash aguvalanis 220,318 J30 316
Total 230 318 4,320 I 636
Liabilities
Fimancial liabilitles
Cuue to unitholders 492 447
Agcrued dxpansas 5 026 5 025
Total 6518 &518

The assets and liabilities included in the above table are carmed at amortisad cost; their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Amcunts due from brokers and other receivables incude the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and other
cbligations duetothe sub-funds. Amounts due to brokers and accruals represent the contractual amounts and obligations

due by the sub-funds for setlement of trades and expenses.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
5. Financial instruments by category
Financial assets

Apart from investments disclosed in the statement of financial position which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, all other financial assets as dizclosed in the statement of financial position, including other receivables, amounts
due from brokers, cash and cash equivalents and due from unitholders, are categorised as “other financial receivables”,

Financial liabilities

Apart from investments disclosed in the statement of financial position which are classified as fair value through profit or
loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the statement of financial position, induding administration fee payable,
management fee payable, rustee fee payable, audit fee payable, amounts due to brokers, other payables and due to
unitholders are categorised as “other financial iabilities™,

6. Derivative financial instruments by category

The sub-funds hold overthe-counter ("OTC") financial dervative instruments. Each sub-fund records its derivative
activiies on a mark-to-market basis. For OTC contracts, the sub-funds enter into master nefting agreements with its
counterparties. Therefore, assets represent the sub-funds’ unrealised gain less unrealised losses for OTC contracts in
which the sub-funds have a master netting agreement. Similarly, liabilities represent net amounts cwned o
counterparties on OTC contracts,

While the prudent use of such derivatives can be beneficial, derivatives also involve risks different from, and in certain
cases, greater than, the ricks presented by more traditional investments. Returns which are derived from a swap

transaction may be more volatile than returns which are derved from the asset underlying the swap transaction,

As of 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the sub-funds statement of financial position included the following financial
derivative instruments:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
Netional value Fair value Motional value  Fair value
JPYODD JPYO00
Chima 2x Bul Fund 1652 500 000 [3.141) 501,830,000 {3.463)
Chima 2x Bear Fund 16T, 490,000 [1.507) 387 490,000 [257)
Gald 2x Bull Fund 513,570,000 [27.322) 26,620,000 {158,703)
Gold 2x Bear Fund AT4T0.000 536 37,700,000 2074
Incia 2 Bull Fund 198, 270,000 [15.512) 276,820,000 (2,519)
India 2x Bear Fund 224 540,000 2841 20,420,000 ]
LS Techrobogy 2x vl Fund T26, 180,000 [371.372) 541,050,000 208,045
LS Technology 2x Bear Fund 2,957 160,000 71,267 1,845 670,000 (71.484]

The sub-funds have credit sk Form OTC cantracts when two conditions are present
{i} the OTC contracts have unrealised gains, net of any collateral; and
{ii} the counterparty to the contract defaults,

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement,

The |SDA and similar master netting agreements entered by the sub-funds with its counterparties do not meet the criteria
for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This iz because they create a right of offset of recognized amounts
that is enforceable only following an event of default, insohvency or bankruptey or the sub-funds or counterparties do not
intend to setfe on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously .
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

&, Derivative financial instruments by category {continued)
Financial assets which are subject to enforceable master nelting agreements or similar agreements for the year ended
30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 are detailed in the following table:
China 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2022
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recagnised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets  presented in the
of recognized set-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities  fimanmcial position paosition position Met amowsnt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY D00 JPY'00D0 JEY'000 JPY0DD JPY'D00 JEY000
Indax swap transaction {5,141] {3,141} 500 2841}
Total 13.141] 13141} - 500 [2E41)
30 June 2021
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financlal assets presented in the
of recognised get-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities  financial positien position position Mat amowunt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Index swap transaction {3 463) - {3463) - - {3 463)
Total {3 463] {3.463) - - (3,463}
China Zx Bear Fund
30 June 2022
Het amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financlal assets  presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staterment of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities  fimancial position position position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY'D00 JPY'000 JPY0DD JPY'D00 JEYO00
Index swap bransaction {1,507]) - {1,507} - 1,507
Total {1,507] - {1,507} - 1,507
30 June 2021
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financlal assets presented in the
of recognised get-off In the statement of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilitlies  fimancial positisn position position Met ameownt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JEY'000 JEY000 JEY'D0D JEY 000 JEY D00
Indi swap trangaction {257] . {37 - FeX
Total 1257] - (5T} - 57
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category (continued)
Gold Zx Bull Fund
30 June 2022
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabllities  fimancial pasitien position pozition Met ameownt
Fimancial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JEY'000 JEY000 JEY'000 JFY '000 JPY 000
Index swap transaction {27.322) - 127 312} - 26 870 {852
Tuatal {27.322] - {27 312} : 26 670 (B2
30 June 2021
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of Fecognised met-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities  financial position position position Met amount
Finaneial Securty
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JEY'D00 JPY 000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Indéx swap transaction (158, 702) - {158,703} - 145410 {14 253}
Tatal {158, 703) - {158, 703} - 145410 {114, 2743}
Gold Zx Bear Fund
30 June 2022

Gross amounts of Net amounts of

recognised financial asssts

Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amounts not set-off

firancial statement of financial in the statement of financial
assets fimancial position pasition position Met amownt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY'000 JPY000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY000
Indest swap transaction L36 - 536 - (44 442
Total 536 - 536 (44 4493
30 June 2021
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial Habilities presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
fimancial statement af financial im the statement of financial
assets fimancial position position position Met amount
Financial Security
Ingtrurments coliateral
JPY D00 JPY'000 JPYO00 JPY'000 JPY'000 JPY 000
Index swap transaction 2074 - 2074 - {1,634) 240
Total 2074 = 2074 E [1.834) 240
86
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B. Derivative financial instruments by category (continued)
India 2x Bull Fund

30 June 2022
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of récognised set-off in the staterment of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabilities  financial positien position position Met amownt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY0D0 JPY000 JPY000 JEY 000 ]
Indéx swap transacti on {15512) - {15,512} - 15512
Toatal {15.512) - 115,512) - 15,512
30 June 2021
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of finarcial inthe statement of financial
liabilities  financial positisn position position Met amownt
Fimancial Secunty
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPYO0D JPY000 JPY00D JPY 000 JPY D00
Index swiap transaction {2 514) - 12.519) - 2519
Tolal {2.518) 12 519} - 2518
Indla 2x Bear Fund
30 June 2022
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
recognised financial aszets
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
assets financial position position position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY0D0 JEY000 JPY00D JPY 000 JPY 000
Inddent Swiap transacti on PR . 2.941 12, 699) FiF
Total 234 - 2941 - {2.649) FEr]
30 June 2021
Net amounts of
Grass amounts of financial
recognised liabilites
Gross amounts financial liabilities presented in the
of recognised get-off in the staternent of  Related amounts net set-off
financial statement of financial In the statement of financial
assets financial position position position Met amount
Financial Security
Instruments collateral

JPY 000 JPY00D JPY000 JPY000 JEY 000 JPY 000
Index swap bransaction - - -

Total

eul

G|

O | O
o

o0

a7
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

6. Derivative financial instruments by category (continued)
U5 Technology 2x Bull Fund
30 June 2022
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amounts not set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
liabllities  financial pasitien position poszition Mat ameoLsnt
Fimancial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JEY'000 JEY000 JEY'000 JFY '000 JPY 000
Index swap transaction 371,372 - 371372} 08 037 {62 335}
Tuatal (371.372] - 371,372} - JOE 03T {62 335}
30 June 2021
Net amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recaognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial Habkilities presented in the
of Fecognised met-off in the staternent of  Related amounts net set-off
financial statement of financial in the statement of financial
aszets fimancial position position position Met amount
Finaneial Securty
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JEY'D00 JPY 000 JPY'000 JPY 000 JPY 000
Indéx swap transaction 200 045 - J09 045 - {142 Q8T 65 058
Tatal 20845 - 208 045 {342 887) 55 058

S Technology 2x Bear Fund

30 June 2022
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
recognised financial asssts
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of Related amounts not set-off
financial staternent of financial in the statement of financial
assets fimancial position pasition position Met amownt
Financial Security
Instruments collateral
JPY 000 JPY000 SJPYO00 JPY000 JPY 000 JPYO00
Indest swap transaction 71 06T - 71 267 - {71 267)
Tolal 1,367 - 11,367 - 171,267
30 June 2021
Met amounts of
Gross amounts of financial
recognised liabilities
Gross amounts financial assets presented in the
of recognised set-off in the staternent of  Related amounts not set-off
financial statement af financial im the statement of firancial
liabilities  fimancial position position position Met amownt
Financial Security
Instruments callateral
JPY D00 JPY00D JPY000 JPY000 JEY 000 JEYO00
Index swap transaction {71.484) - {71,454 - & 748 {14,736}
Total {71484 = 171 484 ) E CE 748 114, 738)
88
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

T.

Met gainsi(losses) onfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

China Zx Bull Fumd

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Realisad gainfloss) on imvestments
Realised (lesskgain on fnancal denvalives
Unreahsed gaingloss) on rvestments
Unrealised gain on financial denvatives

China 2x Bear Fund

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and Habilities at falr value through profit or loss:

Realised gainfloss) on imvestments
Realised gaingloss] on knanaal denvelyes
Unrealised gainfloss)on mvestiments
Unmeahzed 055 on inancial demalives

Gold Zx Bull Fund

MNet gainsf{losses) on financial assets and lHabilities at falr value through profit or loss:

Realised ganfloss) on imvestimants

Realised {lossPgain on financial dedvatives
Unrealised ganikssh on mwvasiments
Unraahsed gainfloss)on inandal demativies

Gold Zx Bear Fund

Met gainslosses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through prefit or loss:

Realisad gainfloss) on imvestments

Realised gain on financial genvatives
Unrealsed gain on investmeants

Unrealised (foss Maainon finandal denvatives

India 2x Bull Fund

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and Habilities at falr value through profit or loss:

Raaligad loss on v astmants

Realised {loss)gain on fnandal denvatives
Unrealised gain on investments

Unreahsed 1055 on lnancial denvedives

Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY000
11 287 {14}
{258,359 17,196
30 {15)
332 T 648
{246 850 24 B15
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY000
47878 {12}
43 508 {20,507}
52 {33}
(1,241) [5.408)
#.288 {25, 960)
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 SJPYO00
T2 A63 {27]
{23191} 57302
1118 [1.087)
132382 {159.821)
183372 {143,733)
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY000 JPY000
1243 9]
8T 4 440
] 16
{1,537) 5419
558 10,566
ear ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY000
[20) {33}
{35, 135) 145,058
1 43
(12933 {10,324}
(45 037 ] 154 742

89
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

T.

Met gainsi(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

India 2x Bear Fund

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Realisad gainfloss) on imvestments
Realised gainfloss] on knancal denvalives
Unreahsed (losskgain on rvestments
Unrealised gain on financial denvatives

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and Habilities at falr value through profit or loss:

Realised gain on irvesimants
Unraahsed (loss MQain on imv estmaents

AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit orloss:

Realised gain on ivesimants
Unrealised (boss ygain on mwestmeants

LIS Technology 2x Bull Fund

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Realised loss on irvaestrmants

Realised gain on financial darvatives
Unrealised loss on investments

Unrealised (losskgain on financal demvatves

Us Technology 2x Bear Fund

Met gainsflosses) on financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Realised loss on irvestments

Raalisad oss on Anandal denmvalives
Unreahsed gainylas) on mw estmants
Unrealised gainqloss)on finandal denvatves

Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY000
2023 {7}
24851 (27,360)
i1} 20
2032 1,365
8 805 {25982}
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
ALID AUD
1,150 253 1,159,800
{3.510,729] 1,776,321
{2 360,476 2955831
Year ended 30 YWear ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
AUD AUD
157 834 1,053,912
{2,120 397 435 063
{1.371.463) 1,401 476
Year ended 30 YWear ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY000 JPY000
(2,232) (2.312)
214 BMm 1,368,144
{1.402) [813)
(580 416] 171,642
1308 533 ] 1516 661
YWear ended 30 YWear ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
JPY TG00 JPY 000
(822) [
(231,769} (4.26.492)
20 (137]
142 751 {63 1236}
{84 810) {490 773)
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g Redeemabde participating units in issue

The sub-funds issue redeemable participating units, which are redeemable at the unitholder's option and are classified
as equity in accordance with A5 32, Should the redeemable participating units’ terms or condiions change such that
they do not comply with the strict criteria contained in 145 32, the redeemable participating units would be reclassified to
a financial lability fom the date the instrument ceases to meat the crteria. The financial liability would be measurad at
the instrument’s fair value at the date of reclassification. Redeemable participating units are carried at the redemption
armount that is payable at the date of the statement of inancial position if the unitholders exercise their rights to put the
units back to the sub-funds for cash at the relevant dealing day.

Redeemable participating units are issued and redeemed at the oplion of the unithclders at prices based on the
sub-fund's net asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemption.

Linithalders may request the sub-funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption date at the net asset value
per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemption procedures, provided that a propery completed
redemption request. accompanied by such evidence of cemership as the Transfer Agent may request, is received by the
Transfer Agent before the relevant dealing deadline.

The minimum redemption amount that applies to a sub-fund is contained in the Prospectus or, as the case may be, the
redlevant Supplement. The Manager may, in its absolute discretion, waive the minimum redemption amount for each class
in general, or in respect of a specific redemption request in whole orin part,

The sub-funds® net asset value per unit is calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to holders of each class of
redeamable participating units with the total number of cutstanding redeemable participating units for each respective
class. In accordance with the provisions of the sub-fund's regulaticns, investment positions are valued based on the
quoted market prices for the purpose of determining the net asset value per unit for subscriptions and redemplions.
Unitholders may redeem their units en any dealing day which is daily in whole or in part.

In addition, in accordance with the explanatory memorandum, the preliminary expenses incurred in the formation of the
Trust and the sub-funds are borne by the sub-fund. Such expenses will be paid out of the asselts of the sub-funds and
amortised over 35 months or as determined by the Manager. However, as stated in Mote 2(i), the accounting policy of
the sub-funds for the purpose of compliance with IFRS and for reporting purpose is to expense the expenses incurred in
the formation of the sub-funds in the pericd in which they arose.

Each sub-fund's net assets value represents equity in the statement of financial position, carried at the redemption
amount that would be payable at the statement of inancial position date ifthe unitholders exercised the right to redesm
the units.

1
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
2. Redeemable participating units in issue (continued)

For the purpose of these financial statements, the following are required to be recognised in the calculation of the
sub-funds’ net assets value:

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the sub-funds, LS Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund, preliminary
expenses are amortised over a period of 36 months from date of launch while for the purpose of these financial
staternents these preliminary expanses are expensed in the period when they are incurred.

Asat 30 June 2022 and 2021 the sub-fund, China 2x Bear Fund has a subscription of index swap which is not included
in the net asset value for subseriptions and redemptions. For the purpose of these financial statements, they are reguired
to be recognised in the calculation of the sub-fund's net assets value. There is no dfference to the sub-fund's net assets
value.

As at 30 June 2022 the sub-fund Gold 2x Bear Fund has a redemption of index swap which is not included in the net
asset value for subscriptions and redemptions. For the purpose of these financial statements, they are required to be
recognised in the calculation of the sub-fund's net assets value, Thereis no difference to the sub-fund's net assets value,

Ag at 30 June 2021 the sub-fund, India 2¢ Bear Fund has a redermption of index swap and a sale of 1 million 0.1% Japan
Government Bond due 20 September 2021, which are neot included in the net asset value for subscriptions and
redemptions. For the purpose of these nancial statements, they are required to be recognised in the caleulation of the
sub-fund's net assets value,

Ag at 30 June 2022 and 2021 the sub-fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 has a sale of 10,000 and 15,000 of
Aries Finance Ltd 0% due 26 September 2022 which is not included in the net asset value for subscriptions and
redemptions respectively, For the purpose of these financial statements, they are reguired to be recognised in the
calculation of the sub-fund's net assets value. There is no difference to the sub-fund's net aszets value.

A reconciliation of the equity per the financial statements and the trading net asset value for issuing/redeeming units at
the financial year end is prepared balow:

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
India Zx Bear Fund SJPY 000 JPYO00
Equity as per statement of fnancial position 45,128 4 531
Reaksed gaindoss due to backdated rade - 2
Tradng net assat value [ subscriptions and redemplions purPosas) A6 138 4 523

30 June 202 30 June 2021
US Technology 2x Bull Fund JPY 0D JPY000
Equity as par statement of fnanaal position 1.968 514 1,726,055
Estableshment oost expemsad off 186 2080
Tradng net asset valus (fr subscnplions and redemplions purposes) 1,968 700 1,738,135

30 June 30EZ 30 June 2021
US Technology 2x Bear Fund JFY 000 JPY000
Equity a5 per statement of fnancial position GO& 937 468 953
Establshment cost expansed off (347} @5
Tradng net asset value (for subscnplions and rédemplions pUIPOSes) GOE 0 A5G0 (ME

g2
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)
The sub-funds, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2« Bull Fund, Gold 2«< Bear Fund, India 2« Bull Fund, India

2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201809, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x
Bull Fund and US Technology 2« Bear Fund have one class of units as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 respectively.

China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
b v 20 2022 20
Class C
Number of units in issue at the beginning of year 26770 22210 15850 16,540
Units rssuad 56,670 59,000 45500 18,680
Units redeemead (B3 440} (54 440) {64 350) {19, 370)
Mummber of units in is5ue at the end of year - 26,770 15,830
Equaty - JFY000 374 998 59673 53424 45,858
MNet asset value par unit - JPY 000 - 9,700 - 6 035
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
i 2021 2022 20
Class DCH
Number of units in issue at the beginning of year - -
Units issued 6T 9T 17030
Units radeamad (14 760} {11,060
MNumber of units in issue at the end of year 53210 £ 950
Equty - JFY000 374 998 3424
Net assat value par unit - JPY000 7048 84974

Gold 2x Bull Fund

Gold 2x Bear Fund

202 2021 2032 2021

Class C

Mumbir of units in 550 2t the beginning of yaar 99,690 44,700 2060 5470
Unis issusad 15,820 178,440 250 24 840
Units redesmed {115 510} (123 450] {2,310) {268,050)
Number of units in issue at the end of year - RN - 2 060
Equsty - FY000 623103 479,360 13615 15457
Mt assat value par unit - JEYO00 - 0524 T.503

Gold 2x Bull Fund

Gold 2x Bear Fund

20 2022 2021

Class DCH

Mumber of units in 15sue at the beginning of year - - -
Units issuad 77.950 7450

Units redearmied (15570} (G.010)

MNurber of units in issue at the and of year 52 3ED 1480 -
Equity - JFY000 629,103 12615 -
Mgt asset value par umit - JP000 10 085 91849 -

India 2x Bull Fund
HE:

India Zx Bear Fund

2021 2022 201

Class C

Number of units in issue at the beginning of year 16,620 47,220 1420 4460
Units issued 12,080 51,440 38080 13,250
Unis redesmed [28 Ga80) (52.040) {38,310} {16 280)
Mumibes of unils in i55ue 26 the and of year : 16,620 . 1420
Equty - JFY 000 175,241 JE264 45 128 4,51
Met assat walue par unit - JFY000 - 1 7.008 3 154
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

8. Redeemable participating units in issue [continued)
India Zx Bull Fund India Zx Bear Fund

202 2021 2022 021
Class DCH
Mumber of units in isswe at the beginning of vwear - - -
Units issuad 34,520 = 050 =
Units redeamad (10 GG} (1,070) -
MNumber of units in issue at the end of year 23 B60 - 3 98D -
Equity - FY000 175341 - 46,128 -
Mt asset valus per umt - JPYR00 7349 : 11500 .

AUD Target Maturity Bond ALD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201605 Fund 2018612

ravr 2021 20z 2021
Class B
Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of year ATTA00 1,158,400 05T 324 430
Unils r55ud - - = =
Units redesmed (174,770} (181, 10:0) 144 750) (6.3 B80)
Mumber of units in issue at the end of year BO2 530 G 7 300 5820 260,570
Ecuaty - ALIDY B2 311363 103,231,740 23,851 Bad 30,562,014
Met assal walwe par unit - ALID 102 56 105 &3 110 88 117 24

US Technology 2x Bull Fund
2022 2024

US Technelogy 2% Bear Fund
202% 2021

Class C

Mumber of units in issue at the beginning of year 558090 60,420 192,350 21,490
Units issuad a6.170 AT3650 381 560 431,440
Units redeamad {141 860} (3TE.380) {573.810) {260, 580)
Number of units in 155ue at tha end of year - 55 680 192|35III
Equity - JFY000 1068514 1,726,055 &5 987 465 953
Net assat value par unit - JPY000 - 30 G54 - 2438

US Technology 2x Bear Fund

US Technology 2x Bull Fund
i 20

2022 20

Class DDD

Mumbar of units in issus 28 thi Deginming of vaar = = o] .
Units issuad 476,750 - 127440 -
Units redesmed {174 390) - {73, 050) -
MNumber of units an 1s5ue 2t the end of year 302 360 - 54 350 -
Equaty - FY000 1,868 514 - &0 98T -
Mt assal valus par unl - JPYO00 6 510 - 11160 -
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PassIM Trust

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
9. Management lee

The Manager is entited to receive management fees for each sub-fund as disclosed in the Prospectus or a Supplement
from time to time.

The Manager may voluntarily undertake to reduce or waive its management fee to recuce expenses of a sub-fund to the
extent that such expenses exceed such lower expense limitation as the Manager may voluntarity declare to be effective.
The Manager may terminate or modify this voluntary undertaking at any time at its scle discretion upon notice in writing
to the trustes and unitholders.

The Manager has agreed to reimburse expenses if the total expenses including administration fee, custody fee, trustee
fee, registrar fee, financial reporting fee and CIMA registration annual fee exceed 1.5% of NAV for China 2x Bull Fund,
China 2« Bear Fund, Gold 2« Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, US Technology 2x
Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund.

The Manager is charging a management fee of 0.51% and 0.43% for ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD
Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612 respectively, for the imvestment of (i) the initial issue price and (i} the number of
outstanding units in issue as of relevant Valuation Day. The Manager will pay, out of this fee, the fees and expenses of
the Trustee, Custodian, Administrator, Transfer Agent and Auditor for ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and the
ALD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612,

Please see below for the amounts incurmed during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 30 June 2022 and

30 June 2021:
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
‘ear ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
JPY000 SJP Y000 JPY 00D SJPY 00D
Management fes (rebata) F ncurmed {3 645] (3,360) {3.955) (3 522)
Managament fee rebate (ecaivabla) / payabls (9.413) {3,183) {7,365} [3,147)
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year endéd 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
JEY 000 JPY 000 JEY 000 JPY'000
wamagement fés {rebata) " noumed {2.751] (4. 218]) [287TTh (3 445])
Management fee rebate (receivable) / payable (4.581] [2778) (6291} [2 236}
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year endéd 30
June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 P e JPY 000 JPYO0D
Management fiee (rebata) F ncurned {3 808] (3.324) (3 964) [3524)
Mamagament e rebabe (ecavabla) / pavable (6. 103] (3.257) (3,258} [1.383]
ALD Target Maturity Bond ALD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201606 Fund 201612
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
AUD AUD AUD AUD
Management fee (rebate) f incurmed add 085 541 630 104 661 126 254
Wanagamant fed rebate (recovabla) | payabla J63 468 202 214 36878 45 214
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8 Management fee (continued)

US Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technolegy 2% Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021

JPY'000 SJPYO00 JPY 000 JPY'O00
Managament fiea (rebata) F ncurred [B13) [2.483) {3 056) 4,739}
Management fea rebate (recavabla) / payable (683} [1.323] {1,931} [2 320}

100 Trustee fee

The sub-funds pay trustee fees at rates agreed from time to time. The Trustee is also be entitied to recover out-of pocket
expenses in performing its senvices.

The trustes fee is a fixed annual fee of USS2, 500 per sub-fund,
The Manager will pay the trustee fee for the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity

Bond Fund 201612,
Please see below for the amounts incurred during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 30 June 2022 and
30 June 2021:
China 2x Bull Fund China 2x Bear Fund
‘Wear ended 30 Year ended 30 Yearended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 Jume 2022 Jdune 2021
JPY000 SR O00 JPY 000 JPYO0D
Trustes 2 mcurrad polit] 303 369 105
Trustes fe prapayment [ 198) (319} {198} {723}
Gold 25 Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
Jume 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000 JPYO0D
Trustes da ncurmed el ] 305 362 05
Trustes &a prapayment [198) (319} [198) {319)
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2032 June 2021 Jume 2022 Jdune 2021
JEY'D00 JEYO00 JPY 00D JEY'O0D
Trusies fea incurmad el 305 ol ] 05
Trustes fee prepayment [193) (350} (153} ELE)
US Technology 2x Bull Fund  US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Yearended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 Jurne 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021
JPYI000 P00 JPY 000 JPYO00
Trustes e incurrad 454 B39 454 B34
Trusless S poapaymmant [257) (541} [257) {535]
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11

Administrators fee

The administrators, BNP Paribas Securities Services, operating though its Singapore Branch and BEMP Paribas Fund
Services Dublin Limited, are paid a service fee as may be agreed between the directors and the Administrator from time
to time. In addition, the Administrators are entiled to receive out of the assets of the sub-fund other service fees,
transaction fees and cut-ofpockel expenses as set out in the administration agreement. The Manager will pay the
Administrators fee for AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201608 and the ALUD Target Maturty Bond Fund 201612,

Please see below for the amounts incurred during the year and amounts payable at the year ended 30 June 2022 and

30 June 2021:

China 2x Bull Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

China 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY000
Adminisbration e moumad 2 350 2129 23449 2128
Adminstration lea payeble 1,228 1,255 1,227 1,235

Gold 23 Bull Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

Gold Zx Bear Fund
YWear ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2022 June 2021 Jung 2022 June 2021
JPY 000 JEYD00 JEY000 JEYDD
Adminstration e mourmed 2,349 2.130 2350 2,130
Administration &a payable 1237 1,255 1238 1233

India 2% Bull Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30

India 2x Bear Fund
Wear ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2022 June 2021 June 3022 June 2021
JPYTD00 JPY'000 JEY000 JPYTO00
Agministration fea mcurmed 2 350 2129 2350 2129
Administrafion fee payable 1,223 i 255 1,228 1,255
US Technolegy 2x Bull Fund IS Technelogy 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPYO00
Agministration e imcurmed 2 691 2488 2 691 2 488
Adrninstration e peale 1,368 611 1 368 611

g7
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

1

13

Custodian fee

The custadian, BMP Paribas Securities Services, operating through its Singapore Branch, is paid a service fee as may
be agreed bebween the directors and the custodian from time to time, In addition, the custodian is entitled to receive out
ofthe assets of the sub-funds other service fees, transaction fees and cut-ofpocket expenses as set outin the custodian
agreement.

The Manager will pay the custodian fee for the sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target
Maturity Boend Fund 201612

Please see below for the amounts incumed during the year and ameounts payable at the year ended 30 June 2022 and
30 June 2021:

China 2x Bull Fund China Zx Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 Jure 2021 Jume 2022 June 2021

JPY D00 SJPY 00D JFY 000 JPYO0D
Custody fea incumad 188 248 244 2ad
Cusiody Taa payabila 1265 18 126 179
Gold 2x Bull Fund Gold 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Yeéar énded 30 Year ended 30 Year énded 30
Jume 2022 SJune 2021 Jume 20232 June 2021
JPY D00 JPY 000 JFY 00D JPY000
Custody fae incumed 373 363 258 217
Custody fee payable 178 304 124 284
India 2x Bull Fund India 2x Bear Fund

‘Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021 June 2022 June 2021
JPY000 JPY000 JPY 000 JPY 000

Custody fes incumed 273 255 236 216

Custody fee payable 138 411 124 2548

US Technology 2% Bull Fund US Technology 2x Bear Fund
Year ended 30 Year ended 30 Forthe period Year ended
June 2022 Jurme 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
JPYD00 JPY000 JPY0DD SJPYD0D

Cugtody fea incumed 533 1525 299 | T8E

Custody fes payable & 085 G614 1,187 2305

Transfer Agency and Registrar

The transfer agency and registrar, BNP Paribas Trust Services Singapore Limited, is paid a service fee as may be agreed
between the directors and the transfer agency and registrar from time to time. In addition, the transfer agency and
registrar is entitted to receive out of the assets of the sub-funds other service fees, transaction fees and cut-of- pocket
expenses as et out in the transfer agency and registrar senvices agreament.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
14. Taxation

There is, at present, no direct taxation in the Cayman Islands and interest, dividends and gains payable to the sub-funds
in respect of the Trust will be received free of all Cayman Islands taxes. Each sub-fund is registered as an "exempted
trust” pursuant to the Trusts Law (as amended). The Trustee has applied for, and expects to receive, an undedaking
from the Governer in Cabinet of the Cayman lslands to the effect that, for a period of 50 years from the creation of each
sub-fund, no law that thereafter is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on income or on
capital assels, gains or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will apply to any property
comprised in or any income ansing under each sub-fund, or to the Unitholders thereof, in respect of any such property
ar income.

The Cayman |slands are not party to any double taxation treaties. Under current Cayman lslands law no tax will be
charged in the Cayman Islands on profits or gains of a sub-fund and dividends of a sub-fund will be payable to unitholders
residing in or outside the Cayman Islands without deduction of tax. Mo stamp duty is levied in the Cayman Islands on
the transfer or redempltion of units in a sub-fund. The sub-funds invest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled
in countries ather than the Cayman Islands, Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital
gains taxes are required to be determined on a self assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted
by the sub-fund's broker on a "withholding” basis.

15 Transactlons with related parties/associates

In accordance with LAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures’, the following are the related parties during the financial year: J P.
Mergan Mansart Management Limited acts as Alternative Investment Fund Manager and Investment Manager for the
Unit Trust. Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited acts as Trustee for the Unit Trust. For further details of the
related party transactions, please refer to Note 9.

JPMorgan Chase & Co. and its affiliates are counterparties for certain derivatives, structured products and certain
government bonds transactions. J.P. Morgan Mansart Management Limited is considered as a connected party of
JPMorgan Chase & Co. All related party transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercal terms.

16. Post Balance Sheet events

The sub-funds, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 20161 2 will mature as
at 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2022 respectively.

17. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustee and the Manager on 9 December
2022
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2022 10
22,265,862.72 2,117,038,227
62,213.58 5,915,267
22,203,649.14 2,111,122,960
202,920
109.42 10,404
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BNP
049319 #01 01 20

50

39

29.2
33.6

14

50
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2022 10
2,500 37 700
25,000,001 25,000,000

2007 11
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AIFM AIFMD FCA
FCA J.P.
AIFM
AIFMD
2022 10
2022 10

23 2,652
2 344
20 986
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131

2022 10 31
148.28
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2021 12 31
2021 2020

13 57,781 8,568 41,827 6,202
14 18,079,628 2,680,847 15,308,007 2,269,871
15 12,369,740 1,834,185 6,588,374 976,924
30,449,368 4,515,032 21,896,381 3,246,795
30,507,149 4,523,600 21,938,208 3,252,997

16 (13,045,259)  (1,934,351) (6,376,524) (945,511)
17,404,109 2,580,681 15,519,857 2,301,284
17,461,890 2,589,249 15,561,684 2,307,487

17 25,000,002 3,707,000 25,000,002 3,707,000
34,864 5,170 34,864 5,170
(7,572,976)  (1,122,921)  (9,473,182)  (1,404,683)
17,461,890 2,589,249 15,561,684 2,307,487

2022

2022

19

19
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J.P.
2021 12 31
2021 2020
6 21,154,280 3,136,757 18,366,426 2,723,374
6  (13,711,895) (2,033,200) (12,523,244) (1,856,947)
(5,442,955) (807,081)  (4,494,555) (666,453)
7 31,903 4,731 63,558 9,424
2,031,333 301,206 1,412,185 209,399
8 2,064 306 9,754 1,446
9 (18,462) (2,738) (11,097) (1,645)
10 2,014,935 298,775 1,410,842 209,200
11 (114,729) (17,012) (107,140) (15,887)
1,900, 206 281,763 1,303,702 193,313
2020
J.P.
2021 12 31

2020
25,000,002 3,707,000 34,864 5,170 (10,776,884) (1,597,996) 14,257,982 2,114,174

1,303,702 193,313 1,303,702 193,313

2020 12 31
25,000,002 3,707,000 34,864 5,170 (9,473,182) (1,404,683) 15,561,684 2,307,487

1,900,206 281,763 1,900,206 281,763
19 152,711 22,644 152,711 22,644
19 (152,711) (22,644) (152,711)  (22,644)
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2021 12 31
25,000,002 3,707,000 34,864 5,170 (7,572,976) (1,122,921) 17,461,890 2,589,249
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J.P.
Jp Jp
E14
5JP 25
FCA
FCA
101 FRS 101
FRS 101 2006 IFRS
2006
FRS 101 2006 IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
46 52
1AS 38 1AS
I1AS 79(a)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
1AS 30 31
1AS 24 17 1AS 24

IAS 24
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4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8
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4.9

4.9.1

SPPI

FVTPL

FVTPL
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FVTPL
JP
4.9.2
FVTPL
FVOCI
4.9.3
ECL
ECL FVOCI ECL
( )
ECL
R&S
12
ECL
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ECL

4.10

4.11

IFRS

EMEA
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2021 2020
4,903,772 3,947,116
16,250,508 14,419,310
21,154,280 18,366,426
(13,711,895) (12,523, 244)
7,442,385 5,843,182
JP
2020 3,947,116
2021 2020
31,903 63,558
2021 2020
2,064 9,754

JP
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2021 2020
18,462 11,097
JP
2021 2020
72,189 68,360
23,923 22,969
2,467,675 1,944,965
381,860 299,803
224,762 153,779
152,711 147,811

2020
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2021 2020
366,261 235,578
(235,578) (86,611)
130,683 148,967
(6,966) (41,827)
(8,988)
(15,954) (41,827)
114,729 107,140
19 2020 19
2021 2020
2,014,935 1,410,842
19
382,838 268,060
(235,578) (86,611)
(3,865) 1,458
(33,940)
(19,679) (41,827)
(8,987)
114,729 107,140
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12
2021 2020
14,457 17,383
125
LTIP
2 2
2
2006 2021 LTIP 4,146 2020 6,244
2021 200,000 2006
13
2021 2020
41,827
15,954 41,827
12 31 57,781 41,827
14

JP
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16
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818,764

17
2020
25,000,000

2020 25,000,000
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2021 2020
39,331 11,186
25,839
12,304,570 6,577,188
12,369,740 6,588,374
1,488,194 (2020 : 1,649,063
2021 2020
9,822,826 4,518,483
1,623,624 1,540,744
1,237,960 68,013
360,849 249,284
13,045,259 6,376,524
2,788,356 2020
2021 2020
2 2
25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
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18
2021 150,954 2020 106,388
19
JP 2015 19
2018 15 LTIP
LTIP 2021 12 31 82.7
2020 67 2025 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50
RSU

RSU RSU
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RSU SAR

2021 12 31 159.31 2020 106.52

152,711 2020 147,811
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Balance sheet '

Az at 31 Decembor 2021 2020

. Mote 5 ¥
. Non-current assats 3

Dofarred tax assel 13 57,781 41,827

Cuirrant assats . o ; g

Cash and cash equivalants 14 18,079,628 15,308,007

Cevlors 15 12,369, 740 6,088,374

Total currant asseds 30,449,368 21,856,381

Total agsets ' : ' 30,507,149 21,038,208

Currant liabilities

Croditors: amounits faling due within ¢ne yoar 16 {13.045 253) {6,376,524)
‘Met currend assets 17404108 15515 857
Mot assots 17,461,890 15,561,684
Equity

Called-up share capilal A 25,000,002 " 25,000,002
Cihiir rgsirvies 34 464 34 854
Accumulated ksses {7 572 976} {5,473,182)
Total equity 17,461,890 15,561,684

The notes on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 18 - 28 wers approvad by the Board of Directors on 19 April 2022 and signed on its
behalf by:

MR

M.P. Melling
Director

Date: 19 Apnil 2022

-10-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement

Yoar ended 31 Decambar 2021 2020
HNote T | $
Cperating incoma & 21,154,280 18,366 436
Openating eupense - {13,711,895) (12,523, 244)
Administralive expensas 15 442 555) (4,454 555)
Orther income 7 31,903 63558
Operating profit 2,031,333 1,412,185
-
interest and simiar income 8 2,064 0,754
Interast expense and similar charges 4 {18,462) {11,087}
Profit befare income tax 10 2,014,935 1,410,842
income tax expense 11 {114,725) {107,140}
Profit for the financial yoar 1,500,206 1,303,702

Statement of comprehensive income

There were no other lems of comprehensive income or expense other than the profit for the financizl vear shown above (2020
§nil). As a resul, profit for the financal year represents total comprehensive income in both the currend and prier financial year,

The nctes on pages 21 - 28 form an inegral part of these financial statements.

18-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

- * X Called-up Other Accumulated

share capital TEEErVEs losises Total equity

5 5 5 ‘ %

Balance 25 at 1 January 2020 25,000,002 34,864 (10.776,884) 14,257 982

Prafil far the financial yaas — ~- 1,303,702 1,203,702

Balance as at 31 December 2020 25,000,002 34,864 9,473,182} 15,561 684

Profit for tha financial year — — 1,800,206 1,800,206

Group sharg based payment cosls 18 - 152, - 162,711
Group share based paymeanl cosls recharged 19 — {152,711} - (152,711}

Balance as at 31 December 2021 25,000,002 34,864 (7.572.976) ° 17,461,890

Other resarves relate to share based payment awards granted ta employeaas by the Company.

Tha noles on pages 21 - 28 form an integral part of thesa financial statemeants.
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J.P. MDRGAH MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Company is a private company limited by shares, incorporated in England and Wales. Tha Campany's immediate parent
undertaking is The Bear Steams Companias LLC, incorporated in the state of Celawara in the United Stales of America (U.5.%)
Thi Company’s ultimate parent undenaking, and the parent undertaking of the only group in which the results of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. (the “Firm® or "JPMorgan Chase”), which is ingorporated in the state of Delaware in the
LLE. The consolidated financial statements of the Firm can De obtzined from the Compeny's registared office at 25 Bank Street,
Canary Whar, London, E14 5JF, England.

Principal activities

The Company is a management and advisory company which provides invesiment management services to clients. The
Company promotes, launchas and manages funds, investments and ofher invesiment solulions In ling wilh its regulatary
parmissions as sel by the Financial Conduct Authonty ("FCA™) The Company is authorsed and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Autharity ("FCA").

2. Basis of preparation

These fimancial statements hawve been prepared in accordance wilth Firancal Reporling Standard 101, "Reduced Disclosure
Framewaork™ ("FRS 101"). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measurement requirements of Internaticnal Financial Reporting
Slandards {"IFRS"} in conformity with the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006,

The financial statements have been prapared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and in accordance
wilh tha Companies Act 20086,

The fotiowing exemptions from the reguirements of IFRS in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have
been applied in the preparation of thase hinancial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

Certain share based payment disclosures in raspect of Group equily instrumeants (IFRS 2, 'Share-based paymeant’
paragraphs 45(k) and 46 to 52},

«  Comparative information disclosures (paragraph 38 of 145 1, 'Prasentation of financal statements’ ("IAS 1) for
reconciliation of share capital (paragraph T8(a){iv) of IAS 1}

«  Statement of compliancs to IFRS {paragraph 16; 1AS 1}
Cash flow statement and related notes (JAS T Cash flow statemenis);

+  Dizclosures in relalion 1 new or revised slandards issued but nat yet affective (paragraph 30 and 34, 1AS 8 "Accounting
policies, changas in accounting estimates and armars’);

+  Key management compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, 1AS 24 'Felated Parly Disclosures’ ("IAS 247));
+  Related party transactions with wholly owned group undedakings (IAS 24,

3.  Critigal accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial sialements generally reguires management to make judgementis, estmales and assumpticns that
affect the amounts recogmised in the financal statements. Due (o the nature of Compamy's buziness and balances, no significant
accouniing estimales or judgements were required in preparation of these financizl slatements.

4, Significant accounting policies

The fcllowing are the significant accounting palicces applied in the preparation of these financial stalements, These polices have
bean applied consistently in each of the yvears presented, unless otherwise stated,

4.1 Functional and presentation cuifency

tems included in the financial statemeants of the Company ara measuréd using the curmency of the primary aconomic environment
in which the entity operates (the "functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in United States ("U.S.") dollars,
wiieh 15 the functional and prasentation currancy of the Campany.

4.2 Forelgn currency translation

Monetary assets and monatary liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at rates of exchange ruling on the
balance sheat data. Income and expense tems denominated In foreign currencies are ransiated inla U.5. dollars al exchange
rales prevailing at the dale of the fransactions. Ary gains o losses arsing on translalion are laken direclly to the income
statement.

Mon-monatary items denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at historical cost are translated into U5, dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the date when the transaction was initially reccgnised.

-21-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant aceounling policies (comlinued)

4.3 Income and expense recognition

Aszel management fees

This revenue category includes fees from Investmen! management and reléted services.

Invesiment management lees are typically based on the value of assels under management and are collected and recognised at
the end of each peried over which the management senices are provided and the value of the managed assets is known. The
Company has conlractual arrangements with third parties for providing distibution and other services in connection with its asset
managemenl activiies.

Income from Access agreemen:

The Company has confractual armangemenis with anolher JPMorgan Chase undertaking for providing services in the form of
principal manager and or investmenl manager Tor cadtain investment struclure and to assist with the initial preparations of sueh
products. Income from this agreement is driven by the reimbursemen] of cerain fied costs as defined in the agreement
and expenses incurred in establishing the Funds subject to the limits prescribed therain.

Expenses

Amounts paid 1o third-party senice providers are recorded in operating expenses under fund rmlated expenses. Oparating
expenses include, but are not limited to custody costs, setlement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, adminisirative, audil or
legal fees. All axpenses are recognised whan the underlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed due date if later.

4.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a presenl legal or constructive abligation as a result of past events, it s
probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
okligation can ba made.

4.5 Pensions and other post-retirement bencfits
The Company paricipales in a defined contribulion pension schema in the United Kingdom,

A defired contribution plan is a pensicn plan under which the Company pavs a defined level of contributions. Obligations for
conlibutions o definred contribution pensicn plans are recaognised as an expense and charged to the income statermant on an
accrual basis.

4.6 Share-bazed payment swards

Share-based payment awands may be made to empleyees of the Company under the Frm's incentive awards schemes. The far

vaiue of any swuch shares, righls o shares or share oplions is measured when tne condiional award is made. This value I3

recognised as the compensation expense 1o the Company over the percd 1o which the parformance crileria relate together with

employers social security expenses of other payroll taxes. All of the awards granted are equity setiled. The Company estimates
. the level of forfetures and applies this ferfeiture rate at the grant cate.,

4.7 Cash and cash equivalanis

Cash and cash equivalents includa cash and balances al banks and leans and advances to banks with maturiies of three months
of less

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on laxable profits (current lax) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits anse. Income tax
recoveratzle on tax allowable losses is recognised as a current tax assel only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by
offset against taxable profils arising In the current or prior pericd. Current lax is measured using tax rales and tax laws that have
been enacled ar substantively enacted at the balance zhesl date.

Daterred tax is provided in full, using the Rability method, on temporgry differences ansing from the differences botween the tax
bases of assets and labilics and their carrylng amounts In the fnancial stalements. Deferred tax is delermined using tax rales
and legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, which are axpected to apply when the deferred tax
assel Is realised or the deferrad tax lability Is setiled. Deferred lax asseis and labilities are only offsel when there is boih a legal
nght and an intenticn o settle on a ne! basis. Curment tax and deferred tax are recognised directly in equity If the ax relales o
items that are recognised in the same or a diferant period i equity.

-22-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4, Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments

4.9,1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i Recognition of financial assels and financial liabilitias

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when il becomes a pany to the contractual provisions of the
instrurnanl. Regular way purchases and sales of securities are recognised on the trade-date, which is the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell an assel,

il. Classification and measurement of financial assels and financial llabikties

On initial recognition, financial assels are classified and measured at amorlised cost, falr value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI) or fair value through profit or less ("FVYTPL"). The classification 5 based on both the business model for
managing the financial assels and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Faclors considered by the Company in determining
Ihe business model for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the
assats’ performance is evaluated and reported fo key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed, and how
managers are compensatad

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified as measured at either amortised cost or FVTPL.
a) Financial assels and finsncial labilibes measured al amortised cost

Firancial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are held under a business model wilh fhe objective to callact contfactual
cash flows ("Hold-tc-Coflect”) and they have contractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and
inlerest ("SPPIY.  In making the SPPI assessment, the Company considers whether the contraclual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement (i.g. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, olher basic
lending rsks and a profit margin that is consistent with 3 basic lending arrangement). Where the contracteal terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial assel is classified and
measured at FVTPL. Financial assets with embedded denvatives are considesed in thair antirety when determining whether their
cash flows are SPPI. As a result of the application of these criteria, only debt financial assets are eligible to be measured at
amorlised cost. :

Financial assels measured al amorhised cosl include cash and cash equivalents and deblors that are in the Hold-to-Collect
business model.

Financial liabilities are measured at amorized cast unless they are hald for trading or desigrated as measured at FYTPL. Most of
the Company's financial iabiities are measured at amortized cost, Financial liabilities measured al amortised cost include trade
craditors, accruals and amounts owed fo other JPMorgan Chase undertakings.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured al amortised cosl are initially recognisad al fair value including fransacton costs
(which are explained below). The intal amounl recognised is subsequently reduced for principal repayments and adjusted for
accrued interest using the effective interest method (see below). In addition, the canrying amount of financial assels is adjusted by
recognising an expeacted credit loss adowance through the profit or loss.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or infterast expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate thal discounts estmated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
ar fmancial liability or @ sharter period when appropriate, to the net carmying amaunt of the financial asset or financial liabiity, The
effective interast rate is established on intial recognition of the financial asset or financial lability. The calculation of the effective
interest rate includes all fees and commissions paid or received, transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral
part of the effective Interest rate. Transaclion costs are incremental costs that are direclly atiributable to the acquisition, issuance
or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability.

Gains and losses arsing on the disposal of finandal assets measured at amortised cost are recognised in ‘trading profit’ or other
nan-interast ravenue as relovant.

4.9.2 Interest income and interest umnu.
Unless a financial asset s credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest methad ta the carrying
amount of a financial asse! before adjusting for any allowance for expected credit losses. If a financial asset is cradil-impained,

interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the carrying amount of the financial assat including any
alicwance for exgecled credit losses.

-23-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Significant accounling policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments {continued)

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense (continued)

Interest expense on financial liabililies is recognised by applying the effective interest methed to the amortised cost of financial
liabidities. Interest income and expense on financial assets and financial liabiites, excluding those dassified al FVTPL, are
presented in interest income from financial assais measured at amorfised cosl and FVOCI and interest expense from financial
liabilties measured at amortised cost respectively, Interest generated as a result of ‘negative’ interest rates is recognised gross,
as inlerest income or intéres! expansa.

4.8.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises ECL far fnanclal assets that are measured at amorised cost.

Tha ECL iz determined on in-scope financial instrumenis measured at amoriized cost or PVOC). ECL are measured collechively
via a portfolic-based (modelled) approach for Stage 1 and 2 assets bul are generally measured indwidually for Stage 3 assels.
ECL are forecasted over the 12-menth lerm (Stage 1) or expected life (Stage 2 or 3) of in-3cope financial instruments, where the
forecast pericd includes the reasonable and supporiatle (R&S) forecast perod, the reversion period and the residual period and
considers the ime value of money, In determining the ECL measurement and staging for a financial instrument, the Company
applies the definition of default consistert with the Baszel definition of default fo maintain unifarmity of the definition across the
Firm.

Determining the appropriateness of the allowance is complex and requires judgment by management about the efect of
circumsiances thal are Inherently uncertain. Further, estimating the alfowance involves consideration of a range of possible
owcomes, which management avaluates to determineg ils best estimale,

Tre Company must consider (he appropriateness of decisions and jucdgments regarding methodolegy and inpuls utilized in
developing estimates of ECL al each reporting penod and document them appropriataly.

4,10 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 1

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual fight to recelve cash flows from the assel has expired, or has been
transterred with either of the following conditions met:

a) the Company has fransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or

b) the Company has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and reéwards; bul has relinguished contred of the
assel

Financial liabiliies are derecognised when (hay are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
4.11 Share Capital

The share capital of the Company consists of ordinary shares, classified as equity

3. Segmental analysis

The Company is not in scope of IFRS &8 'Operating segments’, as its debt or equity instrumeants.are not traded on a public market,
therefore sagmental analysis of the Company's revenue and 2ssels is not necessary. The Company operates in the EMEA
geographic region,

6. Operating income and expense

20d1 2020

H 3

Access Agreement fees 4,803,772 3047116
Assel management fees

Investmen: managemen fees 16,250,508 14,419,310

21,154,280 18,266,426

Operaling axpenses (13,711,835) {12,523 244)

T.442,385 5843182
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

& Operating income and expense (continued)

Invastmani managemant fees represents fees for risk management and siralegic assel management services, via its fund
solutions business. Cument year income includes fees of 54,903,772 (2020; $3,947,116) from other JPMorgan Chase
underiakings perdaining 1o the Access Agreement. Operating expenses include fund costs paid by the Company on behalf of
the funds. This arrangement may include payment of all the expenses or those expenses excesding specific imil which has
been agreed upon. The Company has disclosed operating income instead of urnover as this reflects more accuralely the
results and nature of the Company’s activities.

T. Other incomea

2021 2020
$ $
Foreign exchange iranslalian gain 31,903 63,558
8. Interest and similar income
2021 2020
5 ¥
Interest and similar incame:
Financial instruments ai amortised cost 2,064 9,754
All interest and similar income is recenvable from other JFMorgan Chase undertakmgs.
9. Interest expense and similar charges
2021 2020
$ $
Irterest expense and similar chargas:
Financial instrurmenis al amadised cest 18,462 11,087
All interest expense and similar charges is payable to other JPMorgan Chase undertakings.
10. Profit before income tax
2021 2020
$ $
Profl befare incoma tax is stated afler charging:
Auditors’ rermuneration for the awdit of the Company's annual fimancial statemeants - 72188 68,360
Audit-relaled a55UFANCE SarIcHS 23823 2060
Wages and salanes 2AGBT ETE 1,544,885
Sacial security cosls 381,860 209,803
iher pension and benefit costs 24,762 153,778
Share based paymenls 152,711 147,811

The average monthly number of persons providing services 1o the Company during the year was 9 (2020: 6).

-85 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

11.  InCome lax expénse

2021 2020
3 $

{a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Curment taxation ;
Currend iax on profts for the year 366 261 235578
Adjustment in respect of pricr years {235,5T8) (BE.611)
Total current bax 130,683 148 367
Deferrad tax
Curmant year credit (6, 966) (a1 827)
Effect of changes in tax rales . (8,988) —
Tatal deferred tax {15,954) {41,827}
Total tax expense for the year 114,728 107,140

(b} Factors affecting the currant tax charge for the year

The tax charge for the vear is as a resull of standard rale of corporation tax applied in tha UK 19% (2020: 10%). The
differences are explained below:

2021 020
£ $
Prafit before incoma tax 014,925 1,410,842
Profil before income taw mulliphed by standand rate of UK corporation tax 19% {2020° 18%) 382838 268,060
Effects of:
Adjustrment in respect of prior years {235.578) (B6.611)
Non deductible expenses 2 (3,865) 1458
Inoomae nal taxable ; — {33.940)
Emplayes stock plan {19,678) {41,827}
Tax cale charges {B.987) -
Tatal tax charge for the year 114,725 107,140
12. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs
2021 2020
H §
Aggregats emolumants 14,457 17,363
Teta!l contributions to & defined contnbutbian plan - 125
Number of dinectors with shares received or recaivable under LTIPs 2 2
Numbar of dirschers 1o whom dafined contribution penaslon rights Bccreed — 2

in eccordance with the Compares Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above represent the propartion paid or payablke in
respect of gualifying services to the Company including LTIPs of $4,146 in 2021 (2020:36,244), Directors also received
amoluments for non-quakfying services, which are not required to be disclosed.

Highest paid director

For 2021, the emoluments of the highest paid director is under £200,000 which is nod required to be disclosed under the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

- 26 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

13. Deferred tax asset

2021 2020
% ¥
Tha balance comprises temporary differances attributabie to:
Share basad paymants:
Opening balance as of 1 January 41,827 —
Defesred Lax charged Lo income statement for the year 15.954 41.827
Clesing balance as of 31 Decembaer - ) 57,781 41,827
14. Cash and cash equivalents’
All bank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase underiakings.
15. Debtors ,
202 © 2020
§ ¥
Prepayment and accrued incoma 3931 11,186
COther assets 25,839 L —
Trade desions 12,304,570 6,577,188
12,369,740 5,588,374

Trada dabtors includes balance owed by a JPMorgan Chasa undertaking of $1 488,194 (2020: §1,649,063).

16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020

1 ¥

Trade cradilors . 9022 B2 4,518,483
Accruals = 1623624 1,540,744
Bank cverdraft 1.237.960 68,013
Taux liabilities 5 : 360,849 249,284
13,045,250 E3TE. 504

Craditors: amounts falling cue within ane year includes halances owed (o JPMorgan Chasa undertakings of $2 788,356 (2020:
5B18,764).

17. Called-up share capital

2021 200
& 3

Issued and fully pald share capital
1 {2020: 1) Orginary share of £1 2 z
25,000,000 {2020 25,000 000} Ordinary shares of $1 each 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

=27 =
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

18. Pension costs

The Company participalés in a defined contribution pension scheme in the United Kingdom.

The Company recorded a total pension expense of $150,954 for the year 2021 (2020: 3106,3188).
18. Share based payments

Employee stock-based awards

The ulimate parent of the Company, JPMergan Chase & Co. has granied long-term share-based awards to cerain key
employeas under s LTIP (Long Term Incentve Plan), as amended and restaled effective May 19,2015 and further amended and
rastated effective May 15, 2018, Under the terms of the LTIF, as of 31 December 2021, 82.7 million shares of caommon stock were
avallable for issuance through May 2025 (2020: 67 millon shares). The LTIP is the only active plan under which the Firm is
currently granling share-based incénlive awards. |n the following discussion, the LTIP. plus prior Firm plans and plans assumed
as the resull of acquisitions, are raferred to collectively as the “LTI Plans” and such plans constitute the Firms' share-based
incentive plans.

Thie Firm separalely recognises compansation expense for each tranche of each award as if il were a separala award with its own
vesling date. For each tranche granled, compensation expense is recagnised in ling with how awards vest from the grant date
until the vesting date of the respactive ranche, provided that the employees will not become full-career aligible during the vesling
pencd, For awards with full-career abigibilty provisions and awards granted with no future substantive service reguirement, the
Firm accruas ine astimated velue of awards expecled o be awarded lo employees a3 of the granl date wilkoul giving
consideration 10 the impact of post-employment restrictions. For each tranche granted to employees who will become full-career
eligible during the vesting perod, compensation expense is recognised in iine with how awards vest from the grant date unfil the
earlier of the employee’s full-career efigibility date or the vesiing date of the respeclive tranche.

Restricted stock units

Restricled stock units (RSUs") are awarded at no ¢ost 10 the recipient upon their grant, RSUs are generally granted annually and
genarally vest at a rale of 50% after two yvears, 50% affer three years, and convert into shares of common stock at the vesting
date. In addition, RSLs fypically include full-carear eligibilty provisions, which allow employeas to continue to vasi upon valuntary
terminaticn, subject to post-employment and other restrictions based on age or service-relaled requirements, All of these awards
are subject to ferfeiture unlil vested and contain clawback provisions thal may result in canceliation prior ta vesting under certain
specihied circumstances. RSUs entille the recipient 1o receive cash payments eguivalent to any dividends paid on the underdying
common stoeck during the peried the RSUs are outstanding.

Compensation expense for RSUs is measured based upon the number of shares granted mulliplied by the stoek price at the grant
date, and for employee steck options and SARs (stock apprecialion rights), is measured at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
valualion model. Compensation expense for these awards is recognised as described above.

The weighted-average share price during the year ended 31 December 2021 was $159,.31 {2020 5106.52).

Compensation expansé rélated to stock-basad incentives

The lotal expense for the year relaling to share based payments was $152,711 (2020: $147.811), all of which refates to equity
sefihed share based payments.

=28 =
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2022 17,709
DS Sumitomo Mitsui DS Asset Management Company,
Limited
2022 20
2019

DS
Jp
2022 10 73,272

JP JP
JPMorgan Chase & Co. JP

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association
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2022 30 12,935

https://ww.cima.ky/upimages/commonfiles/QuarterlyListofal IMutualFundsregisteredandlicensedwithth
eCaymanlslandsMonetaryAuthority-30June2022 1657639974 .pdf

1993
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CIMA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of PassiIM Trust(the “Trust”), which comprise the statements of financial
position for China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India
2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x
Bull Fund and US Technology 2x Bear Fund as at 30 June 2022(together the “ sub-funds’), and comprises the statements
of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for China 2x Bull Fund, China
2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund, India 2x Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity
Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201612, US Technology 2x Bull Fund and US Technology 2x
Bear Fund for the year ended 30 June 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects the financia position of the
sub-funds of the Trust as at 30 June 2022 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust's unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in notes 1 and 2(a), the AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609 and the AUD Target Maturity Bond
Fund 201612 will cease operations on 30 September 2022 and 30 December 2022 respectively, and as aresult, the basis
of accounting for them has been changed from the going concern basis to the liquidation basis. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Other information
Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon, such as the trustee's report and the investment manager’'s report. Management are responsible

for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies in the
financial statements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or
a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust's

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Grand Cayman

9 December 2022
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited s financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “ Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31
December 2021; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting

policies.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)”) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for

aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting

in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the

company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant

sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises al of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financia statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent

otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain

opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared

in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we

did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of userstaken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management’s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and
determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries. Audit procedures

performed by the engagement team included:

Identification of journal entries for testing via the application of fraud risk criteria, including journal entries
posted by senior management;

Evaluation of entity level controls put in place by management to prevent and detect irregularities;

Enquiries with senior management, the UK Audit and Compliance Committee, internal audit and internal legal
advisors including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations,
and fraud;

Assessment of whistleblowing procedures, reports and management's investigation of such matters; and
Review of key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the FCA) in relation to compliance and regulatory
proceedings.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional

mi srepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsis located on the FRC's website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose

hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

303/304



EDINETOIOOD
000000000000doooooooooooodn(e30829)
o o o o o o e e e
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Sarah Hayman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

19 April 2022
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